
 

 
 

Notice of a public meeting of Health, Housing and Adult Social Care 
Policy and Scrutiny Committee 

 
To: Councillors Doughty (Chair), Cullwick (Vice-Chair), 

Richardson, Cannon, Mason, Warters and Pavlovic 
 

Date: Wednesday, 15 November 2017 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Snow Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G035) 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
1. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 2) 
 At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare: 

 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests  

 any prejudicial interests or  

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
 
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 8) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 13 

September 2017. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so. The deadline for 
registering is 5:00pm on Tuesday 14 November 2017. 
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will 
be filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered 
public speakers who have given their permission. This broadcast 



 

can be viewed at: http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting.  Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are 
at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present.  It can be viewed at: 
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_f
or_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_201
60809.pdf 
 

4. Housing Review Account Business Plan (Pages 9 - 70) 
 This report provides an overview of the revised Housing 

Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan for the next 30 years 
and provides detail of the key priorities for the next five years.  

5. Healthwatch York Six Monthly Review (Pages 71 - 86) 
 This report sets out the performance of Healthwatch York over 

the past six months. 
 

6. Urgent Care Resilience Plans 2017-18 (Pages 87 - 96) 
 This cover report introduces a presentation by York Teaching 

Hospital NHS Foundation Trust on the current and ongoing 
schemes which support the Urgent Care and Whole System 
Resilience (winter pressures monies), along with the key drivers 
and key risks associated with its Winter Plan 2017-18.  

7. Future Focus Update Report (Pages 97 - 106) 
 This report seeks to inform the committee about the progress 

of the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme “Future 
Focus”.   
 

8. Work Plan (Pages 107 - 112) 
 Members are asked to consider the Committee’s work plan for 

the municipal year. 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf


 

9. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent. 

 
Democracy Officer: 
 
Name- Becky Holloway 
Telephone – 01904 553978 
E-mail- becky.holloway@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
Contact details are set out above 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Adult Social Care Policy and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Agenda item 1: Declarations of interest. 
 
Please state any amendments you have to your declarations of interest: 

 
Councillor S Barnes      Works for Leeds North Clinical Commissioning 

Group 
 
Councillor Craghill        Member of Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Councillor Doughty Member of York NHS Foundation Teaching Trust. 
  
Councillor Richardson Niece is a district nurse.                                                     

Ongoing treatment at York Pain clinic and ongoing 
treatment for knee operation. 

  
                                                         
 
 
   
 
     
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Health, Housing and Adult Social Care Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 

Date 13 September 2017 

Present Councillors Doughty (Chair), Cannon, Steward 
(Substitute), Mason and Pavlovic 

Apologies Councillors Warters 

 

22. Declarations of Interest  
 

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting, 
any personal interests, not included on the Register of Interests, 
or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they may 
have in respect of business on the agenda. None were 
declared. 

 
 
23. Minutes  
 

That the minutes of the Health, Housing and Adult Social Care 
Policy and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 25 July 2017 be 
approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
 
24. Public Participation  
 

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at 
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 

 
 
25. First Quarter Finance & Performance Monitoring Report  
 

Members considered a report analysing the latest performance 
for 2017/18 and forecasting the financial outturn position by 
reference to the service plans and budgets for all of the services 
falling under the responsibility of the Corporate Director of 
Health, Housing and Adult Social Care.  
 
The Finance Manager for Adults, Children & Education and the 
Strategic Support Manager for Adult Social Care and Public 
Health responded to questions from Members relating to 
forecast overspends on supported living schemes and the Older 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Persons’ Homes budget, as well as pressures on public health 
spending. In particular, Officers undertook: 

 

 to report back to Members on the circumstances relating to 
the substance misuse contract; and 

 to provide Members with details of the revised key 
performance indicators in relation to adults with learning 
disabilities and mental health issues, when available;  

 
Resolved:  That the report be noted and Members be 

provided with the further updates requested 
above.  

 
Reason: To update the Committee on the latest financial 

and performance position for 2017/18. 
 
 
26. Homeless Reduction Act 2017  
 

Members considered a report advising about the content and 
implications of the Homeless Reduction Act 2017 due to come 
into force on 1 April 2018. The Act would further extend the 
statutory duty to relieve homelessness (assist in finding 
alternative accommodation) for a further 56 days but Councils 
were awaiting the accompanying Code of Guidance, as well as 
details of any available Government grant. 
 
Whilst Members acknowledged that further guidance and 
details of grants were awaited, concerns were expressed about 
the potential impact of the Act on resources, together with the 
lack of affordable housing. 

 
Resolved: That the new statutory duties placed on City of 

York Council under the Homeless Reduction 
Act 2017 be noted so that the Officers could be 
supported in developing appropriate services, 
resources and accommodation solutions. 

 
Reason: To inform the Committee of the content and 

implications of the Homeless Reduction Act 
2017.   

 
 
 

Page 4



27. Fire Safety Actions & Response Following Grenfell Tower  
  Fire  
 

Members considered an update report further to the verbal fire 
safety report previously provided to the Scrutiny Committee by 
the Head of Building Services on 20 June 2017, following the 
Grenfell Tower fire on 16 June 2017. The report summarised 
actions taken since the June meeting. 
 
The Head of Building Maintenance responded to  Members’ 
questions. In particular, it was explained that CYC had a 
voluntary fire safety accreditation for landlords but it was not 
possible to regulate all privately rented accommodation, 
including houses in multiple occupation (HMOs). In addition, 
Members were informed that CYC worked with universities to 
inform the student community about their rights in privately-
rented accommodation. 

 
Resolved: That the update on the actions taken by the 

authority be noted. 
 

Reason:  To inform Members of fire safety actions 
undertaken by the Council. 

 
 
28. July 2017 (Month 4) Financial Position for York Teaching  
  Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  
 

Members considered a summary report on the financial position 
of York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, as at July 
2017.  
 
Andrew Bertram, Finance Director (York Teaching Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust) and Beverley Geary, the Chief Nurse 
(York Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust), attended the 
meeting to respond to Members’ questions.  
 
To set the context of the report, the Finance Director detailed 
the background to the operation of the Trust. The report 
highlighted the Trust’s continuing position of deficit in the region 
of £13.8m. Income and expenditure pressures were analysed in 
some detail. Members were advised that the Trust’s Corporate 
Directors were preparing a financial recovery plan in response 
to the situation.  Meanwhile, the Trust were already in 
discussions with the Treasury regarding the possibility of 

Page 5



securing a capital loan to assist the position, given the 
additional likely pressures upon the Trust and its services over 
the coming winter months.  
 
Members discussed the position is some detail, raising the 
following specific concerns: 

 

 the impact on patient care should a loan not be secured and 
funds run out;  

 there appeared to have been ‘inefficiencies’ across the Trust 
and its services for some years now, which seemed not to 
have been addressed until the situation had deteriorated so 
significantly; 

 there appeared to be a growing dependency upon Agency 
staff, given overall staff shortages, which, in turn, added to 
financial pressures; 

 the impact on morale and service delivery caused by 
experienced staff leaving the Trust, as a result of work 
pressures. 

 
Members commented on the number of abbreviations used in 
the report and requested a glossary of terminology be provided 
for similar reports and that, in future the graphs be presented in 
larger format to make them easier to read.  

 
Resolved:   That 
 

(i) The report on the Trust’s financial 
position be noted, together with 
the steps being taken to try to 
address the situation; and 

 
(ii) The improvements requested 

above to the presentation of the 
report be adopted for similar future 
reports  

 
Reason:  To inform Members of the current 

financial position for York Teaching 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



29. Consultation on the Draft Mental Health Strategy for York  
  2017-2022  
 

Members considered a report submitting, for their comments, 
the draft Mental Health Strategy for the city. It was noted that 
consultation on the Strategy was currently underway and ended 
on 8 October 2017. Members were advised that a workshop 
was taking place to bring together health & wellbeing partners 
to work on common focus and vision for the Strategy. 
 
Members commented upon the draft strategy, suggesting that it 
should focus on ensuring a consistency of service in the 
provision of acute mental health care and on methods of 
delivery as well as community support.   
 
Resolved: That the draft mental health strategy be 

endorsed subject to the wider focus outlined 
above and to any common focus being 
identified for inclusion by health partners. 

 
Reason: To ensure Members contribute to the Mental 

Health Strategy during its consultation stage.  
 
 
30. Work Plan  
 

Members considered and endorsed the Committee’s work plan 
for the remainder of the 2017/18 municipal year.  

  
Resolved: That the work plan be noted and endorsed to 

date. 
 

Reason: To keep the Committee’s work plan updated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr P Doughty, Chair  
[The meeting started at 5.30pm and finished at 7.50pm]. 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
 15th November 2017 
Health, Housing and Adult Social Care Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Report of the Assistant Director of Housing and Community Safety 

Updated of Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2017 to 2047 

Summary 

1. This report provides an overview of the revised Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) Business Plan for the next 30 years and provides detail of 
the key priorities for the next five years, including the investment fund to 
support the delivery of more affordable new homes. The plan also 
demonstrates how the housing service is supporting wider agendas such 
as early intervention and prevention and the older people’s 
accommodation programme. 

Background 

2. The core purpose of the HRA Business Plan is to set out the priorities for 
the business over the next 30 years and to demonstrate that the council 
can maintain its housing assets, deliver a quality customer focused 
service as well as improve its homes and neighbourhoods. It is first and 
foremost a financial document, which determines how the council will 
meet the needs of present and future tenants whilst ensuring the long-
term viability of the stock.  

3. In April 2012, the funding regime for local authority social housing 
changed radically.  The abolition of the national (HRA) subsidy system, a 
national system for redistributing housing resources, was replaced with a 
locally managed 'self financing' system.  Local authorities now retain the 
rental streams from their housing assets, alongside the responsibility for 
managing, maintaining and improving the housing stock and supporting 
an opening level of debt that was allocated to each authority. The level 
of debt allocated to York was £122m. 

4. The Business Plan needs to be read in conjunction with the HRA Asset 
Management Strategy, which covers the 30-year period 2015/16 to 
2044/45 and sets out priorities for the physical care and improvement of 
the housing stock and related housing assets. This Business Plan draws 

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



 

upon the stock condition information and data analysis used in the 
formulation of the Asset Management Strategy.  

5. Following the general election in May 2015 there was a need to 
fundamentally review the plan to take account of the local impact of 
changes announced at a national level. These are outlined below: 

a) The announcement in the July 2015 budget statement that social 
housing rents will reduce by 1% a year for the next 4 years which 
resulted in a reduction in income over the 4 years of £12.8m and of 
approximately £240m over the lifetime of the business plan. 

b) The Housing and Planning Act which received royal ascent in May 
2016 which included:  

 the extension of the right to buy to Registered Providers 
(Housing Associations) tenants and cross subsidised by Local 
Authorities selling there high value stock to compensate the RPs 
for the discounts. There are still a lot of unknowns associated 
with the high value sales and therefore what the impact of this 
will be in the business plan.  Current estimates assess the 
financial impact to be in the region of £100m on a best case 
scenario and £214m on a worst case scenario;    

 The introduction of ‘pay to stay’ whereby households who are 
earning more than £30k will be required to pay a market rent; 

 The ending of ‘lifetime’ secure tenancies for social tenants 
through the introduction of flexible tenancies. 

c) The impact of further welfare reform on the income management of 
the HRA. 

6. In the intervening period much has changed. The EU referendum and 
subsequent ‘Brexit’ negotiations have taken up much of government time 
and effort. There has also been a distinct change in language and 
emphasis as well as a change of Prime Minister and a further general 
election earlier this year.  

7. ‘Pay to Stay’ has formally been dropped whilst the full implementation of 
the full extension of Right To Buy has not happened including the 
compulsory sale of higher value stock to fund this. In addition, secure 
tenancies in their current format are still available as the regulations 
around flexible tenancies have not been published as yet.  

8. There has been a change in emphasis in housing policy from home 
ownership to an acknowledgement that more affordable rented options 

Page 10



 

are also needed. The fire at Grenfell Towers has also lead to a review of 
regulations and fire safety in social housing with significant 
recommendations expected in the future. 

9. There has also been increasing calls to tackle the housing crisis and this 
is exemplified with the passing of the Homeless Reduction Act 2017 to 
become effective from April 2018. This extends the duty to provide 
assistance to a wider range of people who are threatened with 
homelessness over a longer period of time before a duty to provide 
‘relief’ through the provision of housing is required. A statutory Code of 
guidance is being developed. 

10. The Housing White paper, ‘Fixing Our Broken Housing Market’ was 
published in February 2017. This emphasises an accelerated housing 
building programme and removing some of the blockages in doing this 
including in the areas of planning and encouragement for smaller 
developers.  

11. A Social Housing Green paper has recently been announced promising a 
‘wide ranging, top-to-bottom review of the issues facing the sector’’ to 
include the safety of social housing following the Grenfell Tower fire, the 
quality of social housing, management of homes, rights of tenants and 
how complaints are handled. 

12. At the recent Conservative Party conference a further £2 billion of 
funding was announced and Government has confirmed plans for a new 
generation of council and housing association homes. Funding for 
affordable homes will be increased to more than £9 billion with a focus on 
those areas ‘where need is greatest’. 

13. The Government has also recently announced that increases to social 
housing rents will be limited to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) plus 1% 
for 5 years from 2020. 

Consultation  

14. The development of the business plan has involved a wide range of staff 
from within housing services, building maintenance and corporate finance.  
In developing the plan we have had regard to a number national issues 
and local strategies that have informed the key priorities for the service  
 

15. The revised business plan and the impact of the national changes has 
been discussed with the Federation of Tenants and Resident 
Associations. The Federation have also expressed concerns about the 
pending stock options appraisal and their desire that the stock is retained 
by the council  

Page 11



 

 
16. The new building programme has been subject to extensive consultation 

with local residents through the planning process. Much of the capital 
programme also includes consultation with tenants.   
 

Options 

 

17. As this report is presented to the Health, Housing and Adult Social Care 
Policy and Scrutiny Committee for information there are no specific 
options for the committee to consider. However, the Executive is being 
asked to consider the two options below: 
 

18. Option one – To adopt the updated plan set out at Annex A.   
 

19. Option two – To ask officers to further revise the document.  
 

Analysis 

 

20. Option one - This Business Plan covers 7 areas where there are 
investment issues for the HRA. It also looks at assumptions around 
performance and treasury management, which have informed the plan, 
particularly in relation to the replenishing of the Investment Fund. The key 
areas are: 

 
New build 
 

21. York is a city with a growing population with the number of people living 
in the city increasing from 177,100 to 198,800 between 1999 and 2009. 
Key issues are:  

 

 Demand for housing, and housing costs are high for both 
homeownership and the private rented sector;  

 Welfare reforms will exacerbate the problems of affordability within 
the private rented sector; 

 At October 2017 there were 1,600 households registered for social 
housing in York; 

 The latest Census results indicate that York had a population of 
198,051 people in 2011. This represents an increase of 9.2% in the 
number of people living within the authority area since the 2001 
Census. The 2016 Mid Year Population Estimate (released by the 
Office of National Statistics) estimates York’s population to be 
208,367, which is a 5.2% population increase since the last Census. 

 the largest growth in population is projected for people aged 60 and 
over; an increase of 16,500 (36%) from 2012 to 2031; 

Page 12



 

 The population aged 75 or over is projected to increase by a greater 
proportion than this (56%) 

 The council averages 500 council lettings per annum; 

 The Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2016 indicated the 
following need for market and affordable housing.  

 
Table 1:  Market and affordable housing need by number of bedrooms 
 

 1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4 bed 

Market 5-10% 35-40% 35-40% 15-20% 

Affordable 35-40% 30-35% 20-25% 5-10% 

All dwellings 15% 35% 35% 15% 

Source: Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) 2016 

 The council’s Draft Local Plan currently proposes allocating 

sufficient residential housing sites to deliver a total of 867 homes 

each year. This must include the provision of affordable housing.  

 
22. The existing council house building programme has allowed the council to 

take a leadership role within the city and support the priorities set out in 
the Council Plan, in particular, ‘A prosperous city for all – where local 
businesses can thrive and residents have good quality jobs, housing and 
opportunities’. Research by the UK Contractors Group1 identifies that 
every £1 spent on construction generates a total of £2.84 in extra 
economic activity of which a significant element is retained within the local 
economy.  Through a programme of Housing Revenue Account 
investment 54 new build council houses and flats have been completed 
since 2015, with a further 27 due by the end of 2017. The programme 
continues and a number of ‘pipeline’ sites are currently being progressed. 
 

23. In addition the council has secured £2.76 million in Government funding 
via the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) for a new affordable 
housing plan to help secure 65 new affordable homes. It will see some 
properties bought on the open market and other new build homes 
available for shared ownership. 

 
24. Office of National Statistics data shows that York has one of the most 

urgent affordability challenges of any local authority area in the North. 
York’s workplace based median affordability ratio at 8.27 is 6th highest out 
of 72 local authorities in Northern England. Furthermore the latest 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment estimated 573 affordable homes 

                                            
1
 National Federation of ALMO’s – Lets get building 

Page 13



 

are needed annually, compared to an average over past 5 years is 103 
completions. As a result there are 1,125 applicants to the York waiting list 
in high or very high housing need. Lack of access to land is a key cause 
of this historic and ongoing shortfall. 

 
25. Major improvement and regeneration projects have been undertaken: 

 

 The Ordnance Lane homeless hostel is not fit for purpose any longer 
and is being replaced (along with 3 other smaller facilities) following the 
purchase and  refurbishment of James House, which will be a 57 unit 
facility of one, two and three bed self contained units. The total cost of 
this is £10.5m which includes funding from the HCA. 

 

 The Groves Regeneration project has been undertaken following a 
successful bid for £265k from the HCA to undertake a feasibility study 
including design options on the 340 city centre homes. The local 
community have been involved in this from the start. 

 

26. The Older Persons Accommodation Programme is delivering suitable 
homes for an ageing population, enabling residents to live independently 
longer and helping with the replacement of the city’s outdated care 
homes. 

 
• Glen Lodge extension and improvement to be completed November 

2017 – improving 42 existing homes and creating 27 new homes 
• Marjorie Waite Court extension currently being designed. Construction 

hoped to start in Q2 2018 (subject to planning etc.) to create 33 new 
homes. 

• Review of existing Sheltered Housing provision 
 
27. It is intended to replenish the council housing investment fund to £20 

million. This is made up of £10m from the working balance on the Housing 
Revenue Account, £5m housing capital, £4m retained Right To Buy (RTB) 
receipts and £1m commuted sums. 
 

28. Up to 6.5% of the overall RTB receipts surplus can be used to 50% fund 
the re-purchase of properties sold under the RTB scheme on first refusal 
(built in to covenants and leases) prior to sale sold on the open market 
permission is sought to do so. Permission to use RTB receipts to 
purchase homes on the open market is also sought. RTB receipts must be 
spent within 3 years and up to 35% can be used in the purchase or 
development of homes. It is proposed that decisions on purchase of 
properties using RTB receipts be delegated to the Assistant Director of 

Page 14



 

Housing and Community Safety to facilitate timely intervention in the 
market when needed. 
 

29. It is also intended to continue and to accelerate the delivery of new 
housing pipeline schemes and to support the housing delivery company 
that the council intends to set up as part of it’s wider move to influence the 
housing market in York and generate income. This is detailed in the report 
to Executive 16th March 2017 ‘Strategic Partnership with the Homes & 
Communities Agency for the Accelerated Delivery of Housing’. This could 
take the form of purchasing properties developed through this partnership 
by the development company. 

Repairs and maintenance/stock investment 

 
30. The Council’s housing stock is well maintained.  The stock has been the 

subject of significant investment over many years with a structured 
programme of maintenance and improvement carried out and with a 
range of ongoing improvement programmes.   
 

31. Over the next 5 years £79.9m will be spent on responsive repairs / 
maintenance and improvements to the housing stock. 

 Every year a number of homes fall out of decency on a rolling basis 
and are improved within the financial year that they become non-
decent. 

 The average energy efficiency Standard Assessment Procedure 
(SAP) rating of the housing stock was 74. This rating is in the top 
quartile across local authorities. 

 There are 588 non-traditional homes. These are properties whose 
original construction was not done in the conventional way. 

 The Business Plan sets out a capital improvement budget of £42.9m 
over the next five years to meet its capital maintenance and 
improvement programme. 

 £10.4m of the £42.9 spend on modernisation 

 £35m to be invested in responsive repairs and cyclical maintenance 
over the next 5 years. 

 
32. During 2016/17 year the Housing Service has: 

 

 Modernised 132 homes to full decency standard (kitchens, 
bathrooms, central heating);  

 Rectified 26 homes of standing water problems. 

 Replaced windows 12 to homes;  

 Renewed 44 roofs; 

 Replaced 736 doors with high security GRP doors; 

Page 15



 

 Carried out external Painting to 1179 homes; 

 Replaced old boilers with high efficiency gas boilers to 637 homes 

 Rewires to 120 properties 

 Installed 31 air source heat pumps 

 Replaced or updated 54 door entry systems 
 

33. The current years programme continues to deliver improvements to the 
housing stock, key figures are: 
 

 Modernise 160 homes’ kitchen, bathroom and electrical systems; 

 Renewing roofs to 32 blocks in current programme, consisting of a 
total of 267 properties, of which c.98 are top floor flats/maisonettes. 

 External Painting to 1131 homes; 

 Replace 650 boilers and heating systems with higher efficiency 
systems;  

 Installing 1 Air Source Heat Pumps to non-gas homes, lowering our 
carbon footprint (this is the only one outstanding from the 
programme); 

 Electrical testing and upgrades to 691 homes; 

 Remediation of 80 homes suffering from standing water which can 
cause damp issues and damage ( the program will reach over 200 
homes in coming years); 

 Door entry system installations and upgrades to 56 entrances. 
 
34. In addition to the above, work is ongoing to develop a plan to move 

Tenants from private water mains to Yorkshire Water Mains in the Tang 
Hall area.  This will be factored into the financial element of the 
Business Plan as part of the capital programme development.   

Housing Management including Independent Living Communities  
 

35. The Housing Management aspect of the Housing Service deals with the 
pro-active management of areas where the council has housing and 
community involvement which make our estates vibrant places to live and 
work.  Most former council estates are clearly mixed tenure now due to 
the effects of Right To Buy. In many areas 50% of the former council 
properties are now privately owned. Key functions within this service are: 

 

 income management (rent collection and rent arrears) 

 tenancy management (mutual exchanges, tenancy amendments etc) 

 letting of properties  

 Right to Buy administration and management of leasehold properties 

 resident involvement 

Page 16



 

 low level tenant ASB functions for the councils housing stock 

 management of Independent Living Communities (formerly sheltered 

schemes) 

 management of the shared spaces both internal and external 

 
36. The new Housing Management structure has been in place since 2nd 

November 2017 and is intended to: 
 

 Provide more personal holistic management of tenancies, 
communities and their environs. 

 Support the council’s approach to prevention and early intervention 
utilising the strengths of individuals and communities 

 Help individuals and communities to become and remain resilient 
especially where services are reducing. 

 
37. Over the past 3 or 4 years the housing management team has reviewed 

its approach to community engagement and with tenant associations, 
ward councillors and other stakeholders they began developing local 
action plans. A number of local hubs have been developed over the last 
year reflecting the council’s ambitions to provide accessible local services. 
Further work is being undertaken to develop the offer that these hubs 
make to the community with partners and local area teams. 
 

38. As part of ensuring that as a strategic landlord we make best use of our 
stock, work has been focused on tackling over crowding and under 
occupying. In the coming year we will review our membership of the North 
Yorkshire Home Choice partnership, work with colleagues across the 
council and with partners to ensure that our tenants cope well with the full 
roll out of Universal Credit and work with our Independent Living 
Community residents to make sure they are living a well and as 
independently as possible. 
 

39. As part of the council’s priority to develop community capacity the housing 
management services will review the Local Estate Action Plans (LEAP) 
and management of localities with residents, colleagues and ward teams. 
The purpose of these plans has been to identify those things that are 
important to residents and local stakeholders and put action plans in place 
to tackle the issues.  It is acknowledged that these need to be more 
effective and work will be undertaken over the next 12 months to 
strengthen their development and embed them into the way we work with 
communities.   
 

Page 17



 

40. The new focus of the housing management service will see the housing 
service become a focused single point of contact for households and a 
service that is the conduit for addressing the full range of needs of its 
customers at a household and neighbourhood level. The new structure 
means that Housing Management Officers are working on smaller 
patches but with a broader responsibility than traditional housing 
functions.  
 

41. Welfare reform remains a critical issue and over the service will continue 
to offer support and assistance to those that are affected by the reforms 
and those that are financially excluded. Work will continue to cope with 
the wider roll out of universal credit and other welfare reforms. There are 
many examples questioning the efficacy of the Universal Credit system 
and York has prepared for its introduction here. The measures taken were 
outlined in the report of the Assistant Director, Customer and Corporate 
Services received at the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and 
Health on 14th September 2017 entitled ‘Options for the additional 
provision of Advice / Support following the introduction of Universal 
Credit’. 

Supported housing  
 

42. Supported housing is defined as housing which is designated for a 
specific group (such as older people, people with learning disabilities etc.) 
and in which there is some level of support provided as part of the 
accommodation offer, this is usually funded through a service charge to 
residents.  
 

43. A supported housing strategy was approved to help address the 
supported housing needs of the City, and to prioritise resources 
appropriately. 

 The Council directly manages 9 Independent Living Communities, and 
a further 2 Independent Living Communities with extra care. 

 Temporary accommodation for statutory homeless households 
includes Ordnance Lane (currently providing 31 units of various sizes) 
Holgate Road and Crombie House (20 units) 

 Around 30 per cent of the total population in York is aged 55 or over, 
this is reflected in the profile of council tenants. 

 Independent Living Community housing makes up 13% of social 
housing stock in York 

 
44. Priorities for the next 12 months are to replace existing homeless hostel 

provision with James House, providing a modern new facility. In 
partnership with Adult Services the extension to Glen Lodge sheltered 

Page 18



 

scheme providing 27 new units will come on line in November 2017 as 
part of the wider older person’s accommodation programme. An extension 
of Marjorie Waite Court currently is also being designed. Construction is 
hoped to start in Q2 2018 (subject to planning etc.) to create 33 new 
homes. 
 
Adaptations 
 

45. Local authority social housing providers are expected to meet the cost 
of any adaptation work required by tenants of their social housing stock. 
Currently approximately 450 council homes are adapted each year to 
meet the needs of particular households.  The investment requirement 
ranges from the need for minor adaptations, such as grab-rails and 
ramps, through more major adaptations such as stair lifts, through floor 
lifts and assisted bathing facilities, up to the need for major structural 
changes. 
 

46. Once a property has been adapted, the council’s processes, via the 
choice based lettings system for managing our housing waiting list and 
allocations activity, ensures that properties with specific adaptations are 
prioritised for the use of those with appropriate need.  

Tenant involvement 
 

47. Tenant involvement is critical to the delivery of an effective and efficient 
housing service. The authority has worked with resident groups and ward 
teams over the previous few years in the process of reviewing the 
approach to customer services. Housing services are part of this 
transformational review. 
 

48. Working with our customers we have developed a range of involvement 
activities from which customers choose how they wish to influence 
services from a wide range of options including:  

 York Resident Federation and 14 Resident Associations 

 Tenant Scrutiny Panel 

 Tenant Complaints panel 

 Tenant Inspectors 

 Annual Tenant and Leaseholder Forum and Open Day 

 A range of satisfaction surveys, focus groups and drop-in sessions 
 

49. The long-standing York Residents' Federation is the umbrella group for 
York's Residents' Associations. With a formal structure, access to senior 
staff and the Executive portfolio holder as a standing member. The 
Federation's voice influences our policies, priorities and performance 

Page 19



 

 
 

Information systems 
 

50. The Housing Service and Building Services rely very heavily on a number 
of business critical ICT systems, with the Integrated Housing Management 
Information System (Northgate SX3) and Civica Servitor system being key 
applications. It has been identified that Housing overall use 17 ICT 
systems with sundry peripheral records to support these. 
 

51. It has been agreed that a fully integrated system will be purchased that 
can deliver vastly improved efficiency for the business and our customers, 
including the ability to self serve on functions such as repair ordering on 
line, viewing of rent accounts or setting up direct debits. This project has a 
budget of £1.7m, a project team is being put in to place and early work on 
scoping out the business requirements has been undertaken with a view 
to putting a specification out to market in March 2018. 
 

52. The development and use of advanced ICT technology and social media 
will fundamentally change the way we work and improve efficiency and 
coincide with a council wide initiative to work smarter and become less 
reliant on office accommodation for its field staff. This will help us take 
services to customers and communities and allow them to actively 
participate in service delivery and development in a wide variety of 
convenient ways 24 hours a day wherever possible. 
 

53. The HRA plays an important role also in the delivery of Council priorities, 
this has been evident through recent in work on poverty prevention, 
strengthening engagement and customer experience. Further work is 
detailed within the plan to ensure alignment with wider priorities is 
achieved. 

54. Option Two – The updated plan builds on the previous business plan and 
replenishes the housing development fund which is a key priority for 
Housing Services and the Council as a whole. Any significant changes 
would require the forecasts to be remodelled and would delay approval. 
 

55. The Executive is being asked to: 
 
a) Agree Option One to adopt and recommend the HRA Business Plan 

as set out in Annex A. 

b) Recommend to council the creation of a new capital budget of £20m to 
fund the creation of additional affordable homes over the period 
2018/19 to 2022/23 

Page 20



 

c) Using Right to Buy receipts and the investment fund to purchase ‘first 
refusal’ former council tenancies and appropriate properties on the 
open market within the limits stated. 

d) Agree that there is no longer a requirement to conduct a stock options 
appraisal in light of the changes that have happened since the original 
decision was made at executive in October 2016, and resident 
associations expressed desire to remain with authority.   

Council Plan 
 
56. This plan supports the Council’s priorities to provide: 
 

 ‘a prosperous city for all – where local businesses can thrive and 
residents have good quality jobs, housing and opportunities’. The 
business plan proposes considerable investment in new and existing 
accommodation. This investment will be a significant boost to the local 
economy. 

 

 ‘a focus on frontline services – to ensure all residents, particularly the 
least advantaged, can access reliable services and community 
facilities’. 

 

 ‘a council that listens to residents – to ensure it delivers the services 
they want and works in partnership with local communities’ 

  
Implications 

 
57. The implications arising from this report are: 

 Financial – The key change within the Business Plan is that a further 

£10m has been identified from the HRA working balance to support 
the aspirations of providing a further £20m provision to support new 
housing schemes. This has been achieved without any significant 
detriment to the overall plan. The full level of debt that was taken at 
self financing settlement of £121.55m is assumed to be repaid by the 
end of the plan although the phasing has changed across some of 
the years to ensure the minimum balance is retained. There are a 
number of other assumptions included in the plan regarding rent 
levels, number of new properties, number and value of council house 
sales that we will sell through Right to Buy / High Value sales 
legislation all require close monitoring and will need to be regularly 
updated.The plan is financially robust as it can fully repay £121.55m 
debt whilst continuing to deliver in year surpluses (prior to debt 

Page 21



 

repayment) in every year of the plan.    
 

 Human Resources (HR) - None 

 Equalities – Community Impact Assessment has been completed 

 Legal - Legal advice will be sought as appropriate regarding Housing 
Law issues, development issues, and purchase of properties from the 
Housing development company and on the open market. 

 Crime and Disorder  - None        

 Information Technology (IT) - Significant investment is in place for 
ICT to support the ambitions of the plan. These are built into ICT work 
plans and monitored by the Housing ICT Project Board. 

 Property None  

Risk Management 
 

58. The changes on the running of the HRA nationally have allowed self 
financing through local housing authorities taking on the responsibilities 
and flexibilities that come through the removal of the subsidy system, 
being in charge of local rent setting, having the benefit of knowing what 
our income will be which creates the ability to effectively financially plan. 
In contrast we are still in the public sector and our financial viability is still 
subject to national decisions such as the decision to reduce council rents 
by 1% per year up to 2019 / 2020.  This creates a risk that further 
changes could result in the business plan not being viable without 
significant reductions in services to our tenants.  .   

 
59. The changes contained in the Welfare Reform Act continue to pose a 

challenge to the authority as the reduced income to some families may 
result in increased levels of bad debts. The impact of spare room subsidy 
has been mitigated by the emphasis being placed on preventative work, 
such as financial inclusion, financial capacity building and measures to 
prevent households from falling into poverty. This work needs to continue 
with the pending implementation of Universal Credit.  
 

60. Following the government changes to the Right to Buy, sales are higher 
than projected, reducing the overall level of rental income received.  The 
impact of this and the not yet fully implemented national changes has been 
built into the plan, however unless savings are achieved we will not have a 
financially viable plan.  Consideration also needs to be given to the 
potential for further national changes that may have a negative financial 
impact on the viability of the plan and what contingency can be put in place.  

Page 22



 

 
Recommendation 
 

61. Members are asked to note the content of this report and make any 
comments which may be useful for a future refresh of the HRA Business 
Plan. 
 
Reason:  The plan sets out the priorities for the housing revenue account 
for the next 5 years and gives clear messages as to the commitment to 
continue to invest in the council’s existing stock, local communities and 
build new much needed social rented housing.  

Contact Details 

Author: 
 

Chief Officers Responsible for the report: 

Denis Southall 
Head of Housing Services 
HHASC 
Tel No. 01904 551298 
 
  

Martin Farran 
Director of Health, Housing & Adult Social Care 
 
Ian Floyd 
Director of Customer & Business Support Services 
 
Tom Brittain 
Assistant Director – Housing & Community Safety 
 

Report 
Approved 

 
Date 7/11/2017  

    
Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
Implication Financial                               
Name   Samantha Sidebottom                                                       
Finance Manager 
Tel No.  01904 551799                                                      

 
Wards Affected: 
 

All √ 

 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Annexes 
 

Annex A – HRA Business Plan. 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

Abbreviations 
 
ASB – Anti-Social Behaviour 
CPI Consumer Price Index 
HCA Homes and Communities Agency 
HRA – Housing Revenue Account 
LEAP – Local Estates Action Plans 
ONS – Office of national Statistics 
RTB – Right To Buy 
SAP – Standard Assessment Procedure 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

City of York Council 

 

Housing Revenue Account 
30 Year Business Plan: 2017-47 

Contents 

 

Foreword ........................................................................ 2 

Introduction ..................................................................... 3 

National Policy Context ................................................... 5 

Local Policy Context........................................................ 8 

Financial Summary ....................................................... 10 

Investment Challenges ................................................. 12 

Repairs and Maintenance / Stock Investment .............. 17 

Housing Management ................................................... 24 

Supported Housing ....................................................... 32 

Adaptations ................................................................... 35 

 

Annex A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Governance and Tenant Involvement ............................ 36 

Information Systems ...................................................... 39 

Rent Arrears, Voids and Rent Setting ............................ 41 

Performance Monitoring ................................................ 43 

Treasury Management .................................................. 45 

 

Abbreviations 

 
HB Housing Benefit 
HCA Homes & Communities Agency 
HMO Housing Management Officer  
HRA Housing Revenue Account 
LHA Local Housing Allowance 
RTB Right to Buy 
UC Universal Credit  

P
age 25



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             2 | P a g e  
 

Foreword 
 
We are pleased to introduce the 2017 revision of our 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan for the 30 
year period 2017-47, which sets out our priorities, plans 
and actions for council housing in our city. This Plan will 
continue to be reviewed regularly. 
 
Its purpose is to demonstrate that the council can maintain 
its housing assets, and deliver the levels of service, home 
and neighbourhood improvements set out in it whilst keeping 
the HRA in a positive balance.  
 
The priorities and programmes must be seen within the 
broader context of public sector savings that need to be 
made by the council. For the HRA, savings of £1.5m were 
identified in the original Business Plan for the four year period 
to 2019/20. This is currently on track with £1.065m delivered 
to 2017/18 and the balance of £0.435m being delivered over 
the next two years.  
 
There have been fundamental policy and legislative changes 
in recent years that directly or indirectly affect the Plan. A key 
priority of this refresh is to reflect those changes and ensure 
that the Plan continues to support delivery of our key aims 
and priorities over the next five years and beyond.  

 
It needs to be read in conjunction with the HRA Strategic 
Asset Plan which itself will be refreshed in the next twelve 
months. This sets out the priorities for the physical care and 
improvement of the housing stock and related housing 

assets. It provides a framework within which decisions on 
investment or disinvestment are made. This Business Plan 
draws upon the stock condition information and data 
analysis used in the HRA Strategic Asset Plan.  

 
A sound Business Plan has become more c r i t i c a l  
since the reform of L ocal G o v e r n m e n t  housing 
finance w i t h  the introduction of the self-financing 
r e g i m e  f r o m  April 2012. This r equired t h a t  local 
authorities take on a one-off debt, in York’s case £121.5m 
and in return keep all its f u tu re  revenue income except for 
a proportion of right to buy (RTB)  receipts that are still 
pooled and returned to central government. It is therefore 
critical that the HRA continues to be managed on solid 
business principles. 
 
The reforms opened up some exciting avenues for York and 
the council has used the opportunity to build much needed 
new council housing in recent years. It has provided flexibility 
to develop significant future ambitions through an accelerated 
housing programme in partnership with the Homes & 
Communities Agency (HCA) announced in early 2017 - 
contributing to the council’s aim to create a prosperous city 
for all - where local businesses can thrive and residents have 
good quality jobs, housing and opportunities - and a council 
that listens to its residents.   

 
The 30 year financial model assumes levels of investment 
to ensure t h a t  properties are maintained to the 
standards within the HRA Strategic Asset Plan.   

 
The Business P lan s u m m a r i s e s  t he national and 

P
age 26



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             3 | P a g e  
 

local strategic context and corporate priorities under 
which we operate. This framework has enabled us to 
identify our challenges and priorities specifically over the 
next five years as well as identifying longer terms issues 
and goals for the next thirty years. 

 
Demand for social housing remains high, particularly 
for family homes and therefore the P lan sets out the 
c ouncil’s aspiration to build new council housing of the 
types needed.  

 
Progress in meeting the priorities of the Plan is given in 
the sections that follow.  

 

Introduction 
 

Background 
 

This Plan covers the 30 year period 2017-47. It focuses 
largely on those activities relevant to the management of the 
council's housing related assets and the challenges facing 
key service delivery areas and contains an investment 
programme, formulated on a 5 year and a 30 year basis. 
 
The Strategic Asset Plan is a key component of the HRA 
Business Plan which balances the competing investment 
needs in the existing housing stock, investment in new 
affordable housing delivery and investment in housing 
management services.  
The council recognises that the national housing crisis has a 
specific and sharp local dimension which impacts negatively 

on our communities and the growth potential of our economy 
which needs a readily available and diverse housing supply 
at different price.  
 
York is an area of high property values, both to buy and rent, 
with intense demand for social housing. This means that the 
council does not have great difficulty when letting vacant 
property. We do still need to anticipate and, where possible, 
halt obsolescence in our stock and maintain housing to a 
standard which is attractive to potential tenants, meets the 
changing nature of household formation and responds to 
other demographic or cultural issues. With land for 
redevelopment at a premium, both in cost and availability, an 
element of re-development of existing stock is also part of 
the Plan.  
 
The council put forward significant proposals in early 2017 to 
step up the pace of delivery of new homes through a 
strategic partnership with the HCA. It represents a 
fundamental shift in the ambition of the council to play a 
more active role in the delivery of wider housing solutions 
through the use of council owned land. It seeks to build on 
the partnership with the HCA to support the development of 
York Central and to use the HCA’s Housing Infrastructure 
Fund to bring forward brownfield sites needing infrastructure 
or remediation investment.  

 

Housing Revenue Account 

From 2012 the funding model for local authority housing 
changed radically. The abolition of the HRA subsidy system, 

P
age 27



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             4 | P a g e  
 

a national mechanism for redistributing housing resources, 
was replaced with a locally managed 'self financing' system.  
Local authorities now retain all rental income from their 
housing assets, alongside the responsibility for managing, 
maintaining and improving the housing stock and supporting 
an opening level of debt that was allocated to each authority. 

HRA reform placed councils in control of their housing 
assets and opened up a range of options for unlocking HRA 
investment capacity that remain consistent with the 
government’s priority to control the national debt. The key 
aspects of HRA reform relevant to York were that: 

 

• Efficient operation of the HRA would generate an 
investment fund for new investment. 

• Under the agreed settlement in 2013 a £20m 
investment and regeneration fund w a s  m a d e  
a v a i l a b l e  over the f i r s t  y e a r s  o f  t h e  
B u s i n e s s  P l a n  to support our priorities 
including building new council housing.   

• Housing will become a real asset capable of 
generating additional investment resources for new 
and improved social and affordable housing. 

• Councils will be able to shape their “housing 
business” to deliver against their local service and 
investment priorities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 1: Key Investment decisions  

 

o £20m set aside to invest in new or improved provision 
from 2013 has been spent or committed against key 
programmes 

 

o £20m will be invested in new development for the next 
five years to 2023, allowing up to £8.5m RTB receipts to 
be invested in new homes (if our full £20m was set 
aside for eligible expenditure)  

 

o £43.2m will be invested over the next five years to 
maintain and improve our tenants’ homes  

 

o £31m will be invested in responsive repairs and cyclical 
maintenance over the same period.  

 

o £1.77m will invested in a new integrated IT system to 
radically improve service delivery   

   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 28



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             5 | P a g e  
 

National Policy Context 
 

Housing Policy 
 
The Localism Act 2011 and the Welfare Reform Act 2012 
taken together have had wide ranging implications for social 
landlords as has further key legislation such as the 2016 
Housing & Planning Act and government spending priorities 
and decisions. 
  

The Localism Act included measures on how social housing is 
allocated, the introduction of self-financing for all local 
authority housing and regulatory reform for the social housing 
sector. Specifically this included: 
 

• Require local authorities to produce a tenancy 
strategy, which will affect the allocation of social 
housing. 

• Abolition of the HRA subsidy system and the 
introduction of self-financing for all local authority 
housing. 

• Regulatory reform including the introduction of 
complaints and tenant panels. 

 

The Government elected in May 2015 introduced 
fundamental and wide ranging changes to the funding, 
definition and delivery of affordable housing. Not all the 
changes introduced in the July 2015 Budget and the Housing 
and Planning Act 2016 have been implemented so there is 
uncertainty about whether some of the Government’s 
proposals will take effect but the 1% rent reduction for four 

years is in place.  
 
Whilst the proposals for ‘pay to stay’ for higher income 
households have been dropped there remains uncertainty 
about the ending of secure ‘lifetime’ tenancies and the  
extension of RTB to housing association tenants funded by 
the sale of high value council housing stock. The latter 
proposal has been modelled as reducing the HRA by £44m 
over thirty years.  
 
There has, however, also been an unmistakeable change in 
tone in the Government’s language and priorities since mid-
2016 following the EU Referendum vote, change of Prime 
Minister and the 2017 election. All this, coupled with 
increasing calls to tackle the housing crisis and the aftermath 
of the Grenfell Tower fire has led to potentially significant 
changes to the policy landscape. This includes the 2017 
Homelessness Reduction Act (effective from April 2018), the 
February 2017 Housing White Paper, ‘Fixing our broken 
housing market’, which acknowledged the scale of the 
problems facing the housing sector and the promise, made in 
October 2017, of a Social Housing Green Paper said to be a 
‘wide ranging, top-to-bottom review of the issues facing the 
sector’.  
 
There has been a shift to accepting an increased role for the 
affordable and council home sector – ownership/private 
renting is no longer seen as the only solution. This is backed 
up a number of announcements made in October 2017: an 
additional £2bn for “affordable housing”, with funding for 
social rented homes in areas “where need is greatest” 
(bringing the total to £9.1bn); a return to the rent increase 

P
age 29



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             6 | P a g e  
 

formula of CPI + 1% from 2020-25 after 4 years of annual 1% 
rent reductions and the decision to abandon proposals to limit 
the maximum amount of help paid through HB/UC to social 
tenants to LHA rates from 2019.                  

     

Welfare Reform 
The 2 0 1 2  W elfare Reform Act and subsequent 
announcements introduced the biggest shake up of the 
welfare system since its inception. A central tenet of the 
programme is to reduce the overall benefits bill and make 
work pay. The Act, along with subsequent measures, has 
impacted o n  tenants who claim benefits, their landlords, 
local housing markets and a range of agencies providing 
money and benefits advice.  The key changes include: 

 

 Creation of Universal Credit (UC) for those of working 
age which will replace six existing benefits, including, 
crucially, Housing Benefit (HB), and will put at risk our 
ability as a landlord to collect rents. 

 Payment of the housing element of UC direct to tenants 
thereby ending automatic direct payment to social 
landlords which existed under HB. 

 Capping the maximum Local Housing Allowance (LHA) 
payable to private sector claimants thereby 
exacerbating the problems of affordability within the 
private rented sector.  

 Increases in non-dependant deductions. 

 Removal of the so-called ‘Spare Room Subsidy’ for 
working age social tenants (commonly referred to as the 
‘bedroom tax’) thereby restricting HB (and UC) so it only 
covers the size of property they are deemed to need. 

 Calculating LHA rates (used for HB and UC claims for 
private tenants) using the 30th percentile of market 
rents rather than the 50th percentile and indexed to the 
Consumer Price Index from April 2013. The rates were 
then frozen for four years from April 2016. 

 Raising the shared accommodation rate age limit from 
25 years to 35 years thereby reducing the maximum 
amount of help available for tenants of this age group.  

 Ending the automatic eligibility to claim help with 
housing costs under UC for 18 – 21 year olds. 

 

A significant risk for the Plan is the collection of rental 
income and we predicted that rent arrears would increase 
because of the impact of the welfare reform changes and 
this has been the case with arrears for 2016/17 at 2.19% up 
from 1.59% in 2012/13. The previously revised bad debt 
provision of 1.5% is considered sufficient for the present.   

 

The Government from May 2015 made further reductions in 
welfare provision as well as other reforms that impact on HRA 
business planning. These include: 
 

 Lowering the benefit cap to £20k p.a. outside London 
from November 2016.  

 Freezing working age benefits for two years from April 
2016.  

 Restricting EU migrants’ right to social housing until 
they have lived in an area for four years.  

 Continuing the roll out of UC.  

 Continuing with the ‘spare room subsidy’ charge.  

 Reducing working tax credits.  

 Restricting child tax credits or UC being paid for more 

P
age 30



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             7 | P a g e  
 

than two children in most cases.  

 Proposals to apply LHA rates to all social tenants 
claiming HB/UC from April 2019 (dropped in October 
2017).  

 
In addition, the national funding model for Supported 
Housing is currently under review and two further 
consultations on proposals will close in January 2018.  
 
Although government made a commitment in July 2016 to 
there being no new welfare reform measures, all existing 
changes remain in place. The full effect of many will be felt 
through to 2020 placing a strain on lower income households.  
 
Welfare reform changes will impact on the levels of rent 
collected by the service and also on the sustainability/turnover 
of tenancies. Moreover, the other government changes – and 
especially the rent reduction and requirement to sell high 
value housing stock - will potentially have a much more direct 
and fundamental impact on the HRA Business Plan.  
 
The cumulative impact of all these policy changes means 
that income into the HRA would be significantly reduced. 
This is a fundamental change to the assumptions made 
when the Business Plan was first published in 2013 and was 
reflected in the February 2016 refresh. 
 

The Right to Buy (RTB) 
 
The 2 0 1 0  –  2 0 1 5  c o a l i t i o n  government increased the 
maximum RTB discount that tenants can receive to £77,000 
(with inflationary increases this is now £78,600). In the last 

two years (2015/16 and 2016/17) 147 council homes have 
been sold under the right-to-buy of which 75% were houses at 
a total discount of £9.48m generating receipts of £11.2m. 
 

Extending the RTB to housing association tenants under the 
Housing & Planning Act 2016 requires councils to sell their 
“high value” housing stock with the receipts being used by 
government to compensate housing associations for the cost 
of selling their homes. 
 

The legislative details of the proposals are yet to be unveiled 
and the Government intends to run a twelve month regional 
pilot of the scheme first which is expected to start during 
2017/18. However, implementation will have a very significant 
impact on the HRA and reduce considerably the opportunity 
for investment in new housing in future years. 
 

Devolution 
 

The government have signalled an intention to support 
further devolution of governance to regions. This may be a 
catalyst for shared services across housing providers in the 
region and could give social housing a greater collective 
voice for funding opportunities. These opportunities will be 
considered as and when more detail emerges. 
 

 
 

 

 

P
age 31



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             8 | P a g e  
 

Local Policy Context 
 
 
The Business Plan is guided by the council’s Corporate 
Plan and contributes to a number of its aims.  The 
Business Plan must be viewed in conjunction with the 
HRA Strategic Asset Plan. 
 

The HRA Business Plan in Context 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Business Plan sets out the investment 
required to: 
 

• Maintain our housing stock to provide good quality 

sustainable council homes to meet a range of 
needs for today and future generations. 

• Achieve and maintain h igh s tandards   of  housing 
management and effective tenant involvement. 

• Assist people in housing need to access social 
housing and to offer support to help vulnerable 
tenants to maintain their tenancy and independent 
living. 

• Respond to and pre-empt changing demand 
patterns, maintaining a balanced portfolio of 
housing to address a wide range of needs. 

• Increase the environmental sustainability of the 
council's housing stock. 

• Deliver the investment programme in  a  cost  
effective manner in accordance with sound 
procurement principles. 

 

Strategic Aims and Priorities 

The HRA Business Plan supports our vision “creating 
homes, building communities” and aligns with the following 
plans and strategies: 

 Council Plan 2015-19. 

 York, North Yorkshire and East Riding Housing Strategy 
2015-21. 

 Supported Housing Strategy 2014-19. 

 A City Partnership to Prevent Homelessness 2013-
2018. 

 Tenancy Strategy 2013-18. 

 HRA Strategic Asset Plan.  

 Local Area Teams delivery model.  

City of York Council Plan 

HRA Business Plan 

Key Initiatives 
 Housing Strategy                                Tenancy Strategy 
 Asset Management Strategy           Homeless Strategy                                    
 Community Safety Strategy            York Equality Strategy              
 Supported Housing Strategy          Children &Young People Plan            
 Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
 Older Persons Accommodation Programme       

P
age 32



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             9 | P a g e  
 

 
The Business Plan will contribute to meeting the council's 
three wider strategic aims in the Council Plan: 

 
 A prosperous city for all.  

 A focus on frontline services. 

 A council that listens to residents. 
 

The new service delivery structure will fundamentally support 
the council’s wider move towards breaking down 
departmental barriers and promote more effective and joined 
up delivery of services to achieve better outcome for 
residents. This will be evidenced in a number of ways 
including: 
 

 Increasing the supply of new affordable homes and 
making the best use of existing homes. 

 Providing facilities that support dedicated high quality 
care for people with specialist needs. 

 Exploring opportunities to expand housing provision to 
the intermediate rented market. 

 Ensuring that frontline services continue to prevent 
homelessness wherever possible and provide housing 
options advice to all vulnerable households. 

 Developing community engagement and consultation 
activities so that our customers are directly involved in 
planning and influencing services.  

 Reducing levels of financial and social exclusion by 
relieving the pressure on family budgets, helping 
disadvantaged individuals to access cost effective 
financial products and tools. 

 Developing and supporting sustainable solutions to 

improve the financial capacity and capability of 
individuals and communities, reduce levels of debt and 
raise awareness of benefit entitlement. 

 Implementing a comprehensive customer profiling 
system, tracking specific customer needs around 
financial inclusion, identifying when client groups will 
require intervention/support and how they are likely to 
access it.  

 Creating financial support packages which effectively 
help vulnerable and marginalised families, individuals 
and communities in settings that are comfortable and 
familiar to them. 

 Working more closely with partners and stakeholders to 
tailor support to meet individual needs. 

 

Alternative Service Delivery Models 

The housing service has explored ways of improving the 
efficiency of its front line delivery and reducing costs. This is 
part of a council-wide initiative to look at other delivery 
models for services including outsourcing. 

The Executive approved an appraisal of alternative service 
delivery models for housing in October 2016. With the shift 
in the national policy landscape signalling a broader 
acceptance of the need for more social housing there is no 
longer a requirement to conduct such an appraisal.  

The council can still achieve its ambitions whilst retaining 
ownership of its stock and within its HRA plans without the 
disruption, expense and uncertainty of a stock options 
appraisal. Stock retention and using the HRA to buy from 

P
age 33



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             10 | P a g e  
 

the proposed property development company supports the 
council’s strategic approach. It also recognised that there 
was no appetite for such an option and that overall tenant 
satisfaction levels with the service are high.  

The service has, however, introduced, from October 2017, a 
new structure for the delivery of its housing management 
function designed to reconfigure its services to better meet 
customers’ needs by focussing on the front line, actively 
promoting tenancy sustainment, help deliver wider council 
initiatives and approaches and meet savings targets.   

Financial Summary  
 

The introduction of self financing resulted in the council 
taking on £121.5m of additional debt from central 
government in March 2012. However, it also means the 
council no longer has to pay the government an annual 
negative subsidy payment which was in the region of £7m. 
 

In taking on this debt the council considered all options as 
part of its decision making and more information is in the 
Treasury Management section of this Plan. Details of the 
current revenue / capital projections are set out in Annex A.  

 

Given the nature of the Plan there are clear financial risks 
that need to be considered in making any projections. In 
addition, the long term impact of the policy changes 
mentioned earlier are not fully known and there remains a 
degree of uncertainty around some of the assumptions that 
have been made. These assumptions will continue to be 
monitored and refined as more details become clear to 

ensure the Plan is robust and sustainable.  
 
Table 2: Key financial assumptions underpinning the  
Plan  

Key Area Assumption Comment 

General 
inflation 

2.0%  

Rent 
increase 
inflation 

-1.00% to 

+3.00% 

Rent increases assumed in 
line with proposed 
government guidelines of 
CPI plus 1% 

External 
borrowing 
interest rate 

3.25% to 
3.98% 

Portfolio of fixed rate 
maturity loans with PWLB 

Minimum 
HRA balance 

£15m  
Recognise risk in self 
financing environment 

Sales of high 
value stock  

40 p.a. 

Based on current 
assumptions regarding 
detail of legislation and 
geography under which 
‘high value’ is calculated  

Right to buy 
sales 

60 p.a. 
reducing to 40 
p.a. over time 

In line with sales forecast 

Void rate 0.9% 
In line with current position, 
no significant 
increase/decrease forecast 

Bad debts 1.5% 
To allow for changes under 
welfare reform 

P
age 34



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             11 | P a g e  
 

In order to manage the HRA with the reduced levels of 
income as a result of the four years of 1% rent decreases 
through to 2019/20 and the increased levels of sales 
forecast, savings of £1.5m over four years were identified 
and are in the process of being delivered.  

 

Key Investment Commitments 2018 - 
2023 

The key financial investment points within the Business Plan 
are: 

• £20m to spend on new homes for rent and 
redevelopment of existing stock between 2018-2023 
(£10m is from the working balance of the HRA, £9m 
housing capital receipts and £1m commuted sums) 

• £43.2m to be inv ested in  existing council homes 
over the next five years 

• £31m to be invested in responsive repairs and 
cyclical maintenance over the next 5 years. 

 

Within the £43.2 million the following work programmes will 
be carried out:  

 

• £10.4m to be spent on modernising 1,100 homes. 

• £6.89m allocated to replace heating systems to 3,000 
homes. 

• £2.2m of funding to adapt properties enabling elderly 
and disabled tenants to remain in their homes.  

• £3.1m will be spent on a programme renewing 
decayed water mains in our ownership, (with c 75% of 
this cost being funded by owner occupiers as a 

condition of sale by the council). 

• £1.16m has been allocated to remedy electrical faults 
arising from systematic testing of fixed electrical 
installations across the portfolio. 

• £1.64m to be spent on replacing roof coverings 
including the removal of asbestos containing materials 
to soffits, fascias and rainwater goods. 

• £0.36m to be spent on fire remediation works arising 
from Fire Risk Assessments. 

• £0.39m is programmed to upgrade energy insulation to 
external walls. 

• £4.4m will be spent on a programme of damp 
remediation, which will include Tenants Choice works 
also being carried out at the same time to the majority 
of properties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 35



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             12 | P a g e  
 

Investment Challenges 
 

Overview 

When considering the delivery of the strategic aims of the 
Business Plan there are a number of identified key areas 
that require investment and where relevant key messages 
from the HRA Strategic Asset Plan have been included. 

 

These key areas cover: 

• New build 

• Building/asset management 

• Landlord services 

• Supported housing & Adaptations. 

• Resident and community involvement 

• Investment in ICT 
 

Further details are below along with contextual information 
and a summary of key messages, which identify areas for 
improvement and investment and the subsequent priorities 
to address this. 

 

Context  
 

York is a growing city with the number of people living here 
increasing from 177,100 to 208,400 between 1999 and 
2017. Latest projections for population growth suggest an 
increase for the period 2012 – 2032 in the range 224,081 to 
231,7691. The largest growth in population is projected for 

                                                 
1
 Report to Executive 13/7/17 – SHMA addendum update May 2017 

people aged 60 and over rising by 16,500 (36%) between 
2012 and 2031 and those aged over 75 to increase by 56%. 
Demand for housing across all tenures is high as is the cost 
and meeting that demand remains a challenge.   

 
Levels of home ownership have declined but still represent by 
far the largest tenure at around 65% of all households (as at 
2011 Census).  House prices are some of the highest in 
North Yorkshire - households need an income of £41,100 p.a. 
to purchase an ‘entry level’ home at the lower quartile 
average cost of £160,000. To rent a lower quartile property at 
£575 per month would need an income of between £17,250 
and £27,600 depending on the affordability threshold (usually 
between 25% and 40%).2 The average York house price is 
9.6 times greater than average earnings putting home 
ownership out of the reach of many.  

 
The private rented sector comprises around 20% of the 
housing stock. Rents are high at above both national and 
regional averages – in 2016/17 the average rent in York was 
£866 compared to £573 for the region and £852 for England3, 
an increase not mirrored by the rise in earnings over the 
same period. Access to the private rented sector by low 
income households is restricted by Local Housing Allowance 
(LHA) rates being capped at  the  30th percentile of rents 
(meaning that less than one in three homes in this sector are 
affordable to those households in receipt of HB/UC) and then 
frozen from 2016.  

 

                                                 
2
 Report to Executive 16 Mar 2017  - ‘Strategic Partnership with the HCA 

for the Accelerated Delivery of Housing’ 
3
 Private rent statistics 2016/17 Valuation Office 26/7/17  

P
age 36



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             13 | P a g e  
 

Social housing (both council and housing association) 
comprises around 15% of the stock. At the end of March 
2017 there were 1,597 households registered for social 
housing in York. From a stock of 7,694 homes the council 
averages around 500 lettings per year.  

 
The council’s pre-publication draft of the Local Plan, currently 
out for consultation, proposes that 867 additional homes, 
including the provision of affordable housing,  are needed in 
York each year until 2032, in order to address the backlog of 
demand and newly arising need.  
 
The existing council house building programme has allowed 
the council to take a leadership role within the city and 
support the priorities in the Council Plan. Through a 
programme of HRA investment 54 new build council homes 
have been completed since 2015, with a further 27 due by the 
end of 2017. The programme continues and a number of 
‘pipeline’ sites are currently being progressed. 
 
The strong housing market in York also presents 
opportunities for the council to invest in new build homes 
confident in the knowledge that demand for these homes will 
be strong across all tenures.  

 

Building New Council Housing  
 

In the original Business Plan a £20m fund was created from 
the HRA allowing a further £18m to be brought in from other 
funds such as Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) 
regeneration funds, RTB receipts, and the use of affordable 
housing commuted sums to allow a new build programme of 

council housing to be established.  
 

The initial focus has been on bringing forward vacant sites 
within the ownership of the HRA but we will also consider, 
subject to the business case being robust, the remodelling 
and in some cases demolition of existing stock to create 
new homes that better meet the needs of residents and 
optimise the use of the land in HRA ownership.   
 
A number of sites were assessed as suitable for development 
with the potential to deliver up to 71 new homes. Initial 
achievements include the delivery of new homes at:   
 

 Beckfield Lane (18 council homes, 9 homes for open 
market sale) May 2015 

 Hewley Avenue (8 homes,) Jan 2016  

 Fenwick Street (8 homes) Summer 2017 

 Pottery Lane (6 homes) Feb 2017  

 Lindsey Avenue (14 homes – off the shelf purchase 
from a developer) Dec 2015  

 
Plans are advanced for new homes in:    

 Newbury Avenue (5 homes) 

 Chaloners Road (6 homes) 
 
In addition we have has secured £2.76 million in Government 
funding via the HCA for a new affordable housing plan to help 
secure 65 new affordable homes. It will see some properties 
bought on the open market and other new build homes 
available for shared ownership.  

 
 

P
age 37



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             14 | P a g e  
 

Table 3: details of the £20m 2013 – 2018 investment 
programme  

 
 
 
The table above details the building programme which shows 
that £20m HRA investment has supported a gross spend of 
£37.87m.  The balance of funding came from HCA grant, RTB 
receipts, other capital receipts and commuted sums.  

 
In July 2015 the council’s Executive approved the Older 
Person’s Accommodation Programme which is designed to 
respond to the projected growth in the population over 75 and 
the inadequate supply of suitable accommodation. It is 
projected to halt the shortfall by 2020 by increasing the net 
provision by 682 units 4  but further work will be needed in the 
following decade to keep pace with the growing older 
persons’ population. Further details of the programme are in 
the ‘Supported Housing’ section of this document.  
 
There are now very few vacant and developable sites within 
the HRA with the capacity to build more than one or two 
homes. Small infill sites such as these do not provide the 
economy of scale necessary for a cost effective 
development programme and a more strategic approach is 
required. This includes option appraisals for the remodelling 
and demolition of existing HRA stock where this is of 
relatively poor quality or design, unpopular, or ‘land hungry’ 
and would thus enable a better quality, more sustainable 
and sometimes net increase in homes to be re-provided.   
 
We also successfully bid for an Estate Regeneration Grant 
of £265k from the HCA to carry out feasibility work on 
improvements to The Groves area, home to 340 
households. 
 

 
 

                                                 
4
 Report to Executive 28/9/17  

Project  Total Cost HRA funded 

Phase 1   

Beckfield Lane £3.59m £1.44m 

Hewley Avenue £1.09m £0.22m 

Fenwick Street £1.53m £0.74m 

Newbury Avenue £1.13m £0.79m 

Chaloners Road £1.41m £0.99m 

Pottery Lane £1.10m £0.40m 

Pack of Cards (Lindsey 
Avenue) 

£1.76m £0.33m 

Sub-total £11.61m £4.91m 

   

Phase 2   

Phase 2 feasibility study £0.03m £0.03m 

Glen Lodge £4.15m £2.94m 

James House (inc. 
Ordnance Lane) 

£10.91m £5.41m 

Shared ownership £5.52m £2.76m 

Marjorie Waite Court £5.65m £3.95m 

Sub-total £26.26m £15.09m 

   

OVERALL TOTAL £37.87m £20.00m 

P
age 38



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             15 | P a g e  
 

Our New Ambitions 
 
The council has recognised that more needs to be done to 
expand the housing stock across all tenures and to 
accelerate the pace of housing delivery particularly by using 
surplus public sector land assets. We want to be able to 
continue with and accelerate the delivery of new housing 
schemes and to support the housing delivery company that 
the council intends to set up as part of its wider move to 
influence the housing market in York and generate income.  
 
We also intend to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the HCA to establish a strategic 
partnership for housing development and investment. Five 
sites have already been identified for consideration under 
the Accelerated Construction programme. It is probable that 
the council will need to set up an arms length trading 
company in order to directly deliver housing outside the 
HRA or enter into a joint venture to do so. One option could 
be the use of HRA funds to purchase properties developed 
through this partnership by the development company. 

 

Delivering our ambitious programme is dependent on the 
business case remaining robust and monitoring closely the 
future impact of the sale of ‘high value’ stock policy.  

 
A strong combined HRA Strategic Asset Plan & Corporate 
Asset Management Plan will ensure we make the right 
decisions on investing in capital funding for new homes. 
 

Any decisions regarding investment in either new build or 
remodelling will be reported through the Corporate Asset 

Management Board to ensure opportunities for joint 
investment and land swaps are maximized, thereby ensuring 
effective corporate use of all our combined assets. 
 

Identifying funding and ensuring value 
for money 

The flexibilities as a result of the HRA Self Financing regime 
and the resulting investment/regeneration fund, alongside 
opportunities to borrow against future rental streams was 
anticipated to generate sufficient headroom for a long term 
investment in the acquisition or building of new homes. An 
initial investment programme of £20m HRA funding was 
agreed under the original Business Plan and with its 
success a further £20m is identified for the next five years.  
 
As a Registered Provider with the HCA the council can bid 
for Affordable Housing Grant and this represents a helpful 
contribution to capital costs. For example, the Beckfield 
Lane housing development some £403k of HCA grant 
funding has been utilised. However, restrictions on the HCA 
grant funding mean that it cannot be used in conjunction 
with RTB receipts. These receipts need to be used within 
three years or returned to government and so will be 
prioritised ahead of any bids for HCA grant funding. To 
ensure that we maximise our opportunities it is proposed 
that we use right-to-buy receipts to buy back suitable former 
council homes that are offered for sale.  
 
The announcement in October 2017 of an additional £2bn 
funding for affordable homes has the potential for a grant of 

P
age 39



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             16 | P a g e  
 

£80,000 per unit which is a potential opportunity depending 
on the final details yet to be published by the Government.      
 
Consideration is also given to the different delivery 
mechanisms for new council housing to ensure value for 
money from the HRA investment fund. This is constantly 
kept under review and covers three core elements; the 
speed of delivery, the build costs and the design standards 
of the homes.  Current considerations include: 

 
• Building new homes with or without grant funding. 

• Using affordable housing commuted sums to develop 
new homes.  

• Options for innovative investment of HRA and/or 
commuted sums on land purchases to facilitate 
mixed tenure developments maximising affordable 
housing delivery and provide a return on capital 
investment made through equity stakes or 
commercial loans. 

• Purchasing homes on the open market. 
• Taking homes through planning gain on private 

developments. 
• The potential for wider partnerships and delivery 

vehicles.  
• Reviewing the environmental and space standards of 

new homes.  
• Considering modular or ‘off site’ construction where 

this is more cost effective and/or offers faster delivery 
than traditional build. 

 
Summary of Key Messages 

 

The funding regime for social housing has changed radically and the 
HRA investment assumptions reflect this but a further £20m investment 
has been identified for the period to 2023.  

The original £20m investment fund to 2018 has been invested or 
committed. 

There is a high and enduring demand for the existing social housing 
stock and a need to increase provision of affordable housing 

Regular reviews of procurement model for new build council housing will 
be undertaken. 

Explore the opportunities provided by the partnership with the HCA and 
the proposed housing development company to provide more social 
housing in the city.  

There is an impetus to explore and support new forms of delivery of 
affordable housing including outside of the HRA. 

There are clear signals from the Government indicating a more positive 
approach to the role of social housing nationally.    

 

Priorities 
Consider options to continue with a  programme for bringing forward the 
delivery of more affordable housing  

Agree a policy on the use of affordable housing capital receipts 
received from RTB sales and commuted sums 

Establish preferred methods for funding on a scheme by scheme basis 

Continue to review available procurement options for the delivery of 
homes 

Bring forward proposals on further council sites that necessitate 
wider re-modelling of stock/selective demolition etc. as part of the 
HRA Strategic Asset Plan.  

P
age 40



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             17 | P a g e  
 

Repairs and Maintenance / 
Stock Investment  

 

Our Priorities 
 

Each year a structured programme of maintenance and 
improvement is carried out following a review of investment 
priorities. Factors taken into account when setting 
investment programmes include: 
 

 Priorities in the Strategic Asset Plan for housing  

 Stock condition data – including dwellings that are at 
risk of failing under the decent homes standard. 

 Components reaching the end or their useful life. 

 Energy efficiency performance.  

 Statutory requirements (e.g. asbestos, fire, electrical 
and gas regulations). 

 Trends in reactive repairs. 

 Redundant or obsolete stock. 

 Improvements to dwellings and communal areas to 
ensure the actual properties as well as communal 
facilities are fit for modern day living and remain 
lettable. 

 The requirements of an ageing population in York for 
adaptations to allow residents to remain in their homes. 

 
A snapshot of the service shows that: 

 

 In  2016/17 our work included 

o carried out around 44,000 responsive repairs  

o modernised 132 homes 

o renewed 44 roofs 

o replaced old boilers in 637 homes.    

 The average unit cost of repairs to void properties is 
£1,900. 

 At the end of March 2017, there were 347 dwellings 
considered a s  n o t  m e e t i n g  a l l  t h e  De ce n t  
Ho m e s  s t a n d a rd s . Remedial work should 
commence on site in early 2018 and be completed by 
the end of 2017/18.   

 The average energy SAP rating of our stock is 74. 

 About 200 homes are affected by standing water in the 
sub-floor areas, which arises predominantly from the 
high water table that exists in parts of York. This is 
being remedied through our Standing Water project, 
due to be completed in March 2019. 

 Over the next 5 years we plan to invest around £45m 
in improving our stock. 

 

Strategic Asset Management 
 
An asset management system (SAM) is used to hold 
information on the key components that make up any asset 
and to guide and influence future investment priorities.  
Assets consist of all property types and also include 
communal and external areas. 
 
Stock condition surveys, and existing stock condition data, 
are used to establish the remaining life of key components. 
As works are completed, components are ‘re-lifed’ within the 

P
age 41



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             18 | P a g e  
 

database to reflect the work.   
 
A Strategic Asset Plan has been developed that not only 
considers maintenance costs, the remaining life of key 
components and structural issues, but will also cross 
reference these with the demand for particular types of 
homes and locations. This comprehensive asset plan will 
then inform investment decisions including whether 
regeneration of existing estates could bring forward 
redevelopment opportunities to create more sustainable 
housing.  

 
Future Proofing Our Housing Stock 
 
A Strategic Asset Plan is key to setting the investment 
priorities for the overall stock, but there are also internal 
modifications to existing homes that can future proof them for 
the changing profile of tenants and potentially also save the 
council money by alleviating some pressures on social care 
and adaptations funding.   
 

Customer Service 
 
The repairs service is regularly described by our customers 
as one of the most important services they receive from 
their landlord, carrying out over 44,000 individual repairs in 
2016/17. This is the biggest customer contact function of the 
service and as such has potentially the largest impact on 
customer satisfaction. In 2016/17 86% of our customers were 
satisfied with the overall quality of repairs. 

Service Restructure 
 
By December 2017 we will complete a service restructure in 
Building Services, which has the following objectives:  
 

 Move towards a more efficient, and sustainable, service 
delivery model that is able to compete commercially and 
consistently demonstrate value for money. 

 Be able to trade more of our services and provide 
income for the council.  

 Increase capacity and improve the way we manage 
service and support staff 

 Reduce hourly rate, be more productive, and work in 
more joined-up way 

 Improve customer experience, develop better IT and 
business information 

 Align the department to support the Council Plan, HRA 
Business Plan and Asset Strategy 

 Move to area working for supervisors to align with hub 
working  

 Embed council values and behaviours – working 
together, to improve and make a difference 

 
Procurement  
 
We aim to improve our procurement skills and methodology, 
to enable us to consistently secure contracts that provide 
value for money, ease of management, quality for our 
customers and contribute to the council’s values. 
 

P
age 42



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             19 | P a g e  
 

In 2017/18 we  
 

 Procured 20 lots of minor works, reactive repairs, and 
specialist contracts. These contracts, with a combined 
value of approximately £800k are there to support our 
in-house repairs team during peak demand periods, or 
where specialist works are required. They also ensure 
that this work is consistently commissioned in a 
compliant and transparent way. 

 Plan to procure services during autumn 2017 to carry 
out a programme of approximately 300 fire safety risks 
assessment reviews to ensure compliance with fire 
regulations and the safety of tenants and residents.  

 Will also procure a comprehensive stock condition 
survey for our social housing stock in 2018. 

 
In 2018/19 we will  
 

 Re-procure our managed stores/materials supply 
contract. The existing £1.5m p.a. contract, which was 
jointly procured with the University of York, has been 
very successful, and will be seeking to replicate and 
improve on that success in the new contract, bringing in 
additional internal partners, including capital projects, in 
order to maximise the benefits across the council.  

 Carry out a review of our existing Tenants’ Choice and 
Standing Water contracts to ensure they continue to 
deliver value for money and quality for our customers.  

 Re-procure our boiler replacement, our painting and 
pre-paint contract and our windows installation 
contracts. 

 

Building Services will continue to work closely with our 
procurement colleagues to secure value for money and 
quality services for our customers. Whilst many of the 
contracts we will procure are likely to come through 
frameworks provided by procurement consortia, we will 
consistently aim to maximise the number of local contractors 
bidding for our work. 
 

IT Infrastructure 
 
In 2017 alongside colleagues in the wider housing service we 
started an ambitious project to replace a wide number of 
separate IT systems with one comprehensive Housing 
Management system. This project will for the first time allow 
full visibility of our service to all users of the system. Bringing 
asset and customer information together in one place will 
remove duplication as information will only need to be 
entered once into the system for all users to see it. This will in 
turn bring significant efficiencies for the whole service and the 
council combined with notable improvements for customers 
as they are provided with on-line access to their rent 
accounts, can book repairs and see when planned works are 
happening.  

In addition we will see a move to mobile working for far more 
of our staff. These system changes will impact on our entire 
workforce, and will lead to very different ways of working, 
making this a critical project for the entire housing service. 

Energy Efficiency 
 
From our position as a landlord we continue to roll out a 

P
age 43



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             20 | P a g e  
 

phased program of improvements to our stock including the 
key area of making homes more energy efficient.  
 
Our average Energy Efficiency Rating (SAP Rating) is 74 
which is better than the social housing average of 70.5. This 
reflects investment in work carried out over the last 5 years 
which includes: 

 

 Fitting ‘A’ rated condensing boilers as standard, with 
current programmes consisting of around 650 boiler 
replacements each year. 

 Fitting thermostatic radiator valves and improved central 
heating controls. 

 Installing air source heat pumps to 28 ‘off gas’ 
properties in 2016/17. 

 Installing insulation to over 1,650 lofts and cavity wall 
insulation to over 1,800 homes completed in 2014. 

 A programme to replace single glazed to double glazed 
windows was completed in 2016.  

 Installing low energy light fittings to communal 
entrances, staircases and external lighting in about 80 
sites every year. 

 Renewal of the communal heating systems at Gale 
Farm Court, Barstow House, The Glebe and Marjorie 
Waite Court sheltered sites. 

 Renewal of night storage electric heating with modern 
electric heating at Alex Lyon House and Honeysuckle 
House – in both communal areas and dwellings. 

 
Funding has been included within our 5 year investment 
programme for energy efficiency works. We are also working 
with Better Homes (York) to identify opportunities to increase 

the energy efficiency of the housing stock as well as levering 
in external funding.   
 
Future initiatives over the next 5 years include: 
 

 Replacing electric night storage heating in c.250 
dwellings. 

 Upgrading insulation of up to 650 dwellings which have 
an uninsulated vertical hung tiling finish, mainly 
maisonettes.  

 Install cavity wall insulation at the Navigation Road site 
to start in early 2018. 

 Continue the boiler replacement programme using ‘A’-
rated boilers and fitting thermostatic radiator valves and 
improved system controls. 

 Continue the programme to replace external softwood 
door replacements – around 500 per year. 

 A programme to replace first generation UVPC windows 
dating from the early 1990’s  - intended to commence in 
Bell Farm and Chapelfields in 2018/19. 

 

Health and Safety management – 
building maintenance 
 
It is the policy of Building Services to adopt the management 
of health and safety as integral to the improvement of 
business performance and define, document and endorse its 
commitment to: 

 

 Implementation of a safety management system based 
upon current work activities, the identification of hazards 

P
age 44



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             21 | P a g e  
 

and the assessment of associated risks. 

 Provision of places of work and vehicles which are safe 
and without risk to the health and welfare of all its 
employees, independent contractors and the general 
public, so far as it is reasonably practicable. 

 Providing appropriate information, instruction and 
programmed training and education. 

 Consulting with employees to determine what measures 
should be taken to increase awareness of health and 
safety. 

 Setting and publishing health and safety objectives 

 Providing adequate and appropriate resources to 
implement this policy. 

 Make regular reviews of this policy and institute 
improvements where possible. 

 Introducing an integrated approach to health, safety and 
the environment. 
 

In addition we will work more closely with our Health and 
Safety colleagues to review and ensure compliance with 
statutory and best practice requirements on key service areas 
such as; 
 

o CDM (Construction Design Management) 

o Asbestos Management 

o Water Hygiene  

o Fire Safety Management 

o Electrical Safety  

o Gas safety 

o Vehicle safety 

o Lone working 

o Use of tools and machinery 

 

Asbestos and Fire Management  
 
Following the Grenfell Tower fire in June 2017 the council 
acted quickly to ensure residents were safe. We have no 
tower blocks (i.e. no buildings over 18m high) and none with 
the Aluminum Composite Material (ACM) cladding that was 
used at Grenfell Tower. Fire risk assessments were carried 
out on 592 premises with communal areas, with further 
checks on 309 communal areas in family homes and 13 in 
sheltered accommodation due to be checked by April 2018.  
 
While not a regulatory requirement, periodic testing of 
electrical systems in dwellings is recognised as  good 
practice by both reducing the risk to tenants of electrical 
shock but also the risk of fire as a result of old unsafe 
electrical systems, recognised as one of the major causes of 
fire. All voids are now being electrically tested and a 
programme to test occupied dwellings is being developed 
with the intention for in house electrical teams undertaking 
the work. This programme will include fitting smoke alarms 
where none are present. Complementary to this is that the 
Tenants Choice programme includes re-wiring of each 
property. 
 
Fire Awareness training was carried out across both Housing 
and Building Services teams over 2015/16 and the four year 
Framework contract for Asbestos Surveys/Air Monitoring will 
be re-procured during 2018   
 

P
age 45



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             22 | P a g e  
 

Summary of Key Messages 
 

We already have asset management data on the condition of 
our stock and we recognise that we now need to overlay this 
with data on the demand and turnover of homes, plus land 
holding to provide a fully comprehensive strategic asset plan 
and that the data needs to be reviewed. 

We will continue to work with the tenants and 
leaseholders to determine the priorities for the service.   

The introduction of mobile working has improved the 
efficiency of the service but further investment has been 
agreed to replace all systems across Housing and 
Building Services to enable integrated and efficient 
customer service  

The housing stock overall is energy efficient, however 
properties that are difficult to treat and ‘off gas’ still require 
attention to ensure residents can afford to heat their homes 
and issues of damp and mould growth are avoided.  

The service remains focused on legal compliance on health 
and safety including asbestos, fire and gas but needs to 
step up activity concerning the maintenance of electrical 
systems. 

We need to look at ways of ‘future-proofing’ the housing 
stock in recognition of the changing demographic profile of 
our tenants and the likelihood of a continuation of a reduced 
housing stock due to RTB sales. Investment to improve  
facilities are part of the future investment programme carried 
out at the correct time 

 

Priorities 
Key programmes of work over the next five years include: 

Complete Building Services restructure, allowing us to 
become more efficient, provide better services to 
customers, and trade externally 

Completion of comprehensive stock condition surveys of all 
council housing stock 

Introduction of new housing management IT system 

Continue to deliver the Tenants’ Choice programme of 
modernisation and improvement to the housing stock 

Painting to the exterior of dwellings and communal areas in 
flats to be extended to an 8 year cycle on the basis that 
properties have historically been painted to very high 
standards. This will generate a revenue saving of c.£700k 
every 8th year to be used for other priorities. 

Renewal of the water supply pipes to circa 2,000 dwellings, 
1,500 of which are not council owned. This remains in the 
programme but is a project subject to risks  

Eradication of major structural damp to several hundred 
properties across the city. Current programme has approx 
200 properties awaiting these works ,with additional 
properties emerging 

Continue the programme of adaptations to enable tenants to 
remain living in their home. 

Resolving structural problems with the prefabricated 
bathroom ‘pods’ to 40 flats at Bell Farm. Prior to any work 
being carried out Housing Development  will complete a 

P
age 46



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             23 | P a g e  
 

feasibility study  

Maximising the funding and delivery opportunities 
presented by the partnership with Better Homes (York) 

Focusing on further improving the experience of 
customers in respect of the maintenance of their homes. 
This includes ease of access to clear, understandable 
information and to the service they receive at their 
home.  

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 47



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             24 | P a g e  
 

Housing Management  
 

The Housing Service is responsible for the management of 
our housing stock and for the community involvement which 
make our estates vibrant places to live and work. Key 
functions within this are the income and tenancy 
management of just under 7,700 homes, letting of properties, 
r ight-to-buy administration, services to around 520 
leaseholders, r e s i d e n t  involvement and management of 
low-level tenant anti-social behaviour. 
 
The service also manages 245 tenancies on behalf of 
Th i r teen  Group  Hous ing  Association for which we 
received £131k in 2016/17 and £125k is expected in 
2017/18. YorHome, the non-profit letting agency for private 
rental properties run by the council, manages around 40 
private sector homes enabling us to match them to suitable 
tenants from our Housing Options service.     
 
Table 4: Council owned homes 
 

Category Stock numbers 1/4/17 

Total HRA stock (units) of which: 7,694 

 General Housing 7,272  

 Sheltered Housing 212  

 Sheltered Housing with Extra Care 153  

 Temp Housing (dispersed) 18  

 Temp Housing (Hostels) 39  
 

We work closely with colleagues and partners in housing 

options, homelessness, Building Services, the city-wide 
community safety hub, housing standards/adaptations, 
supported housing and the Housing Development team to 
deliver a comprehensive, joined-up service for tenants at 
all stages of their tenancy.  

 
National government initiatives and proposed policy changes 
present challenges and opportunities for the service. The 1% 
reduction in rents for the four years from April 2016 - 2020 
has a significant impact on the income for the housing 
service although the confirmation of the return to the CPI 
+1% rent increase formula from 2020 restores some longer 
term certainty. Similarly the proposals for the sale of our high 
value stock could lead to the loss of hundreds of homes and 
rental income over time although the government has yet to 
firm up any implementation details. The continuation of the 
spare room subsidy (‘bedroom tax’) and the further roll out of 
Universal Credit to most new claimants from September 
2017 will continue to place pressures on the housing 
management service as well as on the resources of those 
tenants directly affected by the measures. 

The 2016 Housing and Planning Act also introduced 
compulsory fixed term tenancies for local authorities 
although the government has yet to implement this.  A 
review of the Tenancy Agreement was completed in early 
2016 and 52 week rent payments have been in place since 
April 2016.    

These policy changes must also be placed in the wider 
context of demographic changes of an ageing population 
and also of an increasing ‘residualisation’ of the housing 

P
age 48



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             25 | P a g e  
 

stock whereby only those households with the greatest 
housing needs and who, by definition, are often those also 
with the highest level of support needs can be housed. 
Furthermore, financial pressures on support and 
resettlement services are leading to less assistance being 
available for some vulnerable tenants and a greater risk of 
tenancy failure requiring a different response from housing 
services.  

Housing Management Restructure 
 

The delivery structure of housing management activities was 
reviewed and new arrangements have been in place since 
October 2017. It is designed to reconfigure services to better 
meet customers’ needs by focussing on the front line and 
actively promoting tenancy sustainment as well as meeting 
savings targets. It is intended to provide personal holistic 
management of tenancies, communities and their environs, 
support the council’s approach to prevention and early 
intervention using the strengths of individuals and 
communities and to help them to become and remain 
resilient.   
 
The most significant change is a move away from large 
patches (areas) each with several Estate Managers to 
smaller patches (with less properties to manage) with one 
Housing Management Officer (HMO) that provides a single 
point of contact for all issues for tenants in that patch.  
 
An important aim is to enable HMOs to know their tenants 
better enabling them to identify issues earlier and triage them 
more effectively. It will also improve our ability to resolve 

more issues at first point of contact. Patches now include 
sheltered housing schemes (which are now called 
‘Independent Living Communities’) but will still have some 
dedicated staff hours on site. Patches are based around the 
East, West and Central areas of the city mirroring that of, and 
working closely in partnership with, the Local Area 
Coordinators. 
 
This new approach recognises that customers of the 
housing service often have complex needs that are not 
always picked up as quickly as they could be. The emphasis 
will be on more contact with customers in their homes and a 
proactive, tailored and holistic service to them, dovetailing 
with and complementing council based and other services 
for the benefit of tenants and communities, breaking down 
departmental silos.   
 
Against a backdrop of demographic and policy challenges it 
is critical that strong performance which minimises costs 
and maximises income and efficiency is maintained. A 
snapshot of performance data for 2016/17 includes:  

 Tenancy turnover was 7.4% in 2015/16 and 5.5% in 
2016/17.  

 Total rent loss through voids was 0.742%.  

 Rent arrears at the end of 2016/17 were £703k 
representing 2.19% of the rent debit. This is an increase 
on the 2015/16 figure of £668k (2.05%). 

 Former tenant arrears for 2016/17 represented 0.88% 
(£283k) of the total rent debit, an improvement on the 
1.04% for 2015/16.  

 Some 387 council tenant households are currently 

P
age 49



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             26 | P a g e  
 

affected by the removal of the ‘spare room subsidy’. 
This is a reduction from 523 noted in the last Business 
Plan and has been achieved by a combination of 
downsizing opportunities including funding to assist with 
removal and other costs, promoting mutual exchanges 
between tenants and introducing policies to prevent 
tenants being allocated or permitted to move into a 
home with more bedrooms than they require (unless 
downsizing from an even larger home). A reduction in 
the overall benefit caseload, that is, less people are 
entitled to HB, has also played a part.     

 As of October 2017 30 tenants are affected by the 
benefits cap which shows an increase because the cap 
was reduced to £20,000 from November 2016. 

 
Income Management  
 
Consistent reduction in current tenant rent arrears over 
previous years has seen a reversal since 2013/14 (see 
Table 6), primarily the result of the cumulative impact of 
welfare reform. 
   
In response to this, as well as maintaining a pro-active/early 
intervention approach working with key partners in housing 
benefit, Citizens Advice York (CAY), Foundation and York 
Learning,  systems have also  been put in place that 
improve the way in which rent accounts are monitored to 
ensure early and timely intervention if these go into arrears.  
 
The switch to UC will present some well documented and 
difficult challenges for some of our residents. For example, 

the need to claim on-line, the inclusion of the housing 
element in the single payment to the claimant, the move to a 
single monthly payment in arrears, a minimum six week delay 
in the first payment and the stricter conditionality rules will 
create some disruption to the ability of some tenants to 
manage their finances effectively. This has the potential to 
significantly undermine the very stable nature of the landlord 
income base and impact adversely on our financial stability. 
The experiences of other social landlords are well known.  
 
We have procedures in place to help identify those of our 
tenants who are claiming UC and may require additional 
support to pay their rent and secure their home. The service 
has been closely involved in the preparations undertaken by 
the council and key partners to ensure that the transition to 
UC is as smooth as possible and that the appropriate support 
is available to residents. This includes close liaison with CAY 
and the wider advice sector, the Department for Work & 
Pensions (DWP), Explore Libraries and the council’s benefit 
service.  
 
The challenges that welfare reform bring require an increased 
focus on early intervention and a more holistic approach in 
supporting tenants with their financial management. Our staff 
will actively promote opportunities around digital inclusion, 
training and employment through advice and support in this 
area. They work with staff across the council and with 
partners to develop initiatives and raise awareness. 
Promoting these is an integral part of the work to enable 
customers to thrive and prosper in a financially challenging 
environment, tapping in to the considerable advantages 
available when accessing on line services. 

P
age 50



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             27 | P a g e  
 

 
To assist in making best use of stock and to help those 
affected by the removal of the ‘spare room subsidy’ the 
landlord service approved a downsizing incentive scheme. 
This includes funding to assist with removal and other costs, 
increased priority for tenants wishing to transfer to smaller 
homes, and ‘swop shop’ events that provide advice and 
assistance to tenants interested in downsizing. This can be 
through transfers and, increasingly through mutual 
exchanges.  
 

Anti-social Behaviour  
 
The housing management team works closely with and is 

supported by a specialist team of Anti‐Social Behaviour 
Officers within the Community Safety Hub based in West 
Offices. They work alongside North Yorkshire Police and the 
Neighbourhood Enforcement Officers and a number of other 
partners. 
 
There has been an increase in the complexity of cases, 
particularly from people suffering from mental health and dual 
diagnosis issues. The Community Safety Unit has a specific 
post that focuses on resolving these complex cases. It is also 
acknowledged that there is currently a shortfall in specialist 
and supported accommodation to meet the needs of these 
groups.  
 
A review of the Hub is expected to be completed by March 
2018 and a new IT system is planned to be in place later in 
2018 to improve the effectiveness of the service, enhance 
communication within the Hub and with partners and upgrade 

the case management system.   
 

Community Development  
 

In the last few years the housing management team has 
reviewed its approach to community engagement and with 
tenant associations, ward councillors and other stakeholders 
they began developing local action plans. A number of local 
hubs have been developed over the last year reflecting the 
council’s ambitions to provide accessible local services. 
Further work is being undertaken to develop the offer that 
these hubs make to the community with partners and local 
area teams. 
 
As part of the council’s priority to develop community capacity 
the housing management services will review the Local 
Estate Action Plans (LEAP) and management of localities 
with residents, colleagues and ward teams. The purpose of 
these plans has been to identify those things that are 
important to residents and local stakeholders and put action 
plans in place to tackle the issues.  It is acknowledged that 
these need to be more effective and work will be undertaken 
over the next 12 months to strengthen their development and 
embed them into the way we work with communities.   

The Letting & Allocation of Homes  
 

The allocation of homes is delivered via the North Yorkshire 
Home Choice (NYHC) sub-regional choice based lettings 
scheme used by York and ten other social housing providers 
across North Yorkshire. The system has created greater 

P
age 51



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             28 | P a g e  
 

transparency for customers but has not been successful in 
reducing the levels of administration.  
A review of the housing registrations process was undertaken 
in 2015 and as a consequence we completely changed our 
approach to manage customer expectations more effectively. 
It found that only 33% of customer demand was being met. 
Over 30% of registered households had little or no housing 
need and were in (the lowest) Bronze band and only 6% of 
properties were let to Bronze band households each year. 
The system generated significant failure demand and our new 
way of working reflected the need for more effective 
management of customer demand coming into the system as 
well as management of that demand once within the system.  
 
From January 2016 the Housing Registrations Team became 
a team of generic Advisors and all customers must now have 
a conversation and or an interview with an Advisor to discuss 
their current Housing situation and housing options available 
to them prior to being given access to the North Yorkshire 
Home Choice Register. This includes realistic information 
with regards to waiting times for re housing within the York. 
This process has seen a decrease in time it takes to process 
applications and a significant decrease in calls and messages 
requesting and update on the progress of an application 
giving staff time to deal efficiently and effectively with 
application processing. In the coming year we will review our 
membership of the North Yorkshire Home Choice 
partnership. 

 

 
 

Customer Services 
 

A new comprehensive training plan for 2017/18 has been 
created to support the new Housing Management structure 
that was introduced in October 2017. It reflects the new 
responsibilities of the more generic HMOs and a clear desire 
to give our people the confidence, skills and knowledge to 
resolve more issues at first point of contact.  
 
We will ensure that services are delivered in the way that 
customers want, when they want them by ensuring that staff 
are supported through training, ICT support, effective 
management and comprehensive policies and procedures. 
 
A thorough training needs analysis and skills audit was 
carried out and the plan has a clear focus on empowering 
our staff to make more effective decisions and improve the 
front line customer experience. We will give staff the tools 
and knowledge to carry out their roles with confidence. Our 
approach to customer services continues to be based on 
customer preference when making contact. The planned 
new ICT system will provide greater opportunity to enhance 
how we contact customers using the wide range of channels 
available. In the meantime we will enable and promote self-
service options and communication media (for example, by 
early 2018 we will have our own Facebook and Twitter 
presence) whilst retaining and developing more traditional 
methods of communication for those customers who need 
and prefer this.  
 
Internal procedure documentation has been overhauled to 
reflect the new structure and version control is now in place 

P
age 52



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             29 | P a g e  
 

to ensure consistency and reliability. More effective mobile 
working is supported by the provision of iPads to all HMOs 
and the information on our website has been reviewed and 
improved. We are improving how we collect and record key 
contact information from customers to ensure that we use it 
more effectively to support customers and align it with 
corporate systems. 
 
We will develop a ‘Customer Care’ visit scheme through 
which all tenants will be visited by a HMO to provide better 
outcomes for customers and the service in terms of service 
provision and identifying and addressing safeguarding, 
support or enforcement issues by working more closely 
with partners such as the Local Area Teams. This will 
enable issues to be identified sooner and intervention 
support provided or signposted at an earlier opportunity.   
 
Our training and staff development will support our ambition 
to make it easier for our customers and communities to do 
more things for themselves which is also reflected in the 
creation of the new position of an Active Communities 
Officer.     
 
We will be bringing forward plans to utilise the 
apprenticeship scheme to train and retain staff and improve 
service delivery. 

 

Right to Buy (RTB) 
 

Historically RTB has been high with over 6,000 homes sold 
within the city since its introduction.  The last three years 
have seen a steady increase in sales coinciding with an 

increase in the maximum discount (currently £78,600) and 
reduced qualifying period for eligibility. In the last two years 
(2015/16 and 2016/17) 147 council homes (see Table 5) have 
been sold under the right-to-buy of which 75% were houses at 
a total discount of £9.48m generating receipts of £11.2m. 
 

The Business Plan settlement model had assumed RTB 
sales between 20 and 28 per year but this has now been 
increased to 60 sales per annum reducing to 50 in the later 
years of the plan.   

 

Table 5: RTB applications and sales 

Year Applications Sales 

2011/12 20 6 

2012/13 88 23 

2013/14 77 53 

2014/15 98 52 

2015/16 141 68 

2016/17 123 79 

2017/18 (to 30/9) 67 29 

 
Making Best Use of Our Stock 
 
Demand for social housing in the city is high and this means 
most homes can be re-let easily. Nevertheless, there are 
properties where remodelling/demolition will improve the 
quality and in come case quantity of homes.  

 

Within the council stock there are also one-off high value 

P
age 53



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             30 | P a g e  
 

properties and a review is undertaken in line with the Asset 
Strategy to determine whether we retain or sell these 
properties using the capital to reinvest in more suitable 
accommodation.  

 

Summary of Key Messages 
 

Welfare reform changes will  impact upon the council’s 
ability to collect rental income and could lead  to increased 
arrears 

Welfare reform will add additional pressures on household 
incomes and living arrangements that will affect tenants’ 
health and wellbeing 

We need to explore more ways of maximising income, 
tackling digital exclusion and assisting customers into 
employment or training 

The introduction of Universal Credit means that the direct 
link between tenants housing related benefits and the 
administration of these by the council will be severed.  

General needs accommodation is not always the most 
suitable accommodation for vulnerable groups including 
those with complex needs 

Development of localised services is key to the effective 
delivery of the housing management function 

Addressing overcrowding and under occupation is an 
essential component of making the best use of the council 
housing stock.  

Deliver a replacement ICT system that meets the needs of 
residents, the housing service and the council’s wider 

priorities.  

 

 

Priorities 
 

Over next 18 months embed and review the new housing 
management structure ensuring that it delivers a more holistic 
serviced to households.  

Continue to review, particularly in the light of Universal Credit, 
rent arrears policies and procedures to ensure that rent is paid 
and households are supported to sustain their homes.  

Continue to provide support to those most likely to be affected by 
welfare reforms to minimise negative impacts on households.  

Encourage under occupiers to take advantage of downsizing 
incentives  to help free up larger homes 

Better understand the needs of our customers through 
detailed customer profiling to inform the development and 
improvement of services 

Develop targeted housing advice to meet the needs of 
different groups, such as younger households, older 
households and those with specialised needs 

Keep the impact of Universal Credit under regular review  

Address financial exclusion by work in partnership with high 
street banks and credit unions to provide basic bank accounts 
and encourage use of direct debit payments 

P
age 54



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             31 | P a g e  
 

Continue financial management training for tenants and staff 
to improve household budgeting 

Explore options for developing specialised accommodation for 
customers with mental health  

Maintain and review  local advice services offering a range of 
advice and information  

Improve the delivery of services at the local level and apply 
common priorities for Local Estate and Wards 

Remodel or redevelop obsolete or less sustainable housing 
stock to maximise the supply of decent affordable homes. 

Review the stock of high value homes and consider options 
for disposal and re-investment in new housing supply 

Deliver the single training plan for the whole service focussing 
on a programme of empowerment and coaching ensuring that it 
supports the new housing management structure.  

Actively engage in the delivery of the Community Safety Plan 
2017 – 20. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 55



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             32 | P a g e  
 

Supported Housing 
 

Supported housing is defined as housing which is 
designated for a specific group (such as older people, people 
with learning disabilities etc.) and in which there is some 
level of support provided as part of the accommodation offer 
usually funded through a service charge to residents. 

 

A supported housing strategy has been developed to 
address the supported housing needs of the City, and to 
prioritise resources appropriately5. The strategy has an 
overarching vision to increase and maintain independence by 
ensuring the right supported housing options are available at 
the right time and the right place for those that need them.  
 
The needs of seven groups were examined in the strategy: 

 Older people (those aged 55 and over)  

 Those with mental ill-health. 

 Those with learning disabilities. 

 Young people,  

 Ex-offenders.  

 Homeless people.   

 Those at risk of substance misuse (drugs and alcohol).  
 
The key priorities and actions identified through the strategy 
can be found in the action plan. Housing Services play a 
critical role in supporting the delivery of the Supported 
Housing Strategy priorities. This includes:  
 

                                                 
5
 York Supported Housing Strategy 2014-2019 

 Directly managing 9 Independent Living Communities, 
and a further 2 with extra care.  

 Providing temporary accommodation for statutory 
homeless households, this includes Ordnance Lane 
(currently providing 31 units of various sizes) Holgate 
Road and Crombie House (20 units). 

 
Around 30% of York’s population is aged 55 or over and this 
is reflected in the profile of council tenants. Sheltered 
Housing (Independent Living Community housing) makes up 
13% of social housing stock in York. 

 

Older Person’s Accommodation Strategy 
 

York’s older persons’ population is growing rapidly with the 
number of over 75s expected to increase by 50% over the next 
fifteen years. The supply of accommodation with care is 
currently inadequate and, as the population increases, the 
shortfall will grow if no action is taken. In July 2015 the 
council’s Executive approved the Older Persons’ 
Accommodation Programme which was designed to address 
this problem and by 2020 can halt the increasing shortfall by 
increasing net provision by 682 units6. Good progress is being 
made with the Programme and confidence is held in its ability 
to deliver the outcomes required.  However, further work will 
be needed in the following decade to keep pace with the 
growing older persons’ population. 
 
The HRA has played a key part in supporting the Programme 
by investing in:   

                                                 
6
 Report to Executive 28/9/17  

P
age 56



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             33 | P a g e  
 

 

 Providing 24/7 care at Glen Lodge and Marjorie Waite 
Court Extra Care schemes. 

 Building a 27 home extension to the Glen Lodge Extra 
Care scheme. 

 Delivering an additional 33 new units of Extra Care 
accommodation by extending Marjorie Waite Court  

 

Mental Health 
 
The main priority identified through Supported Housing 
Strategy consultation was for supported accommodation for 
people with mental health issues, along with complex or 
multiple issues who also have other support needs due to 
substance misuse or offending. These individuals require 
intensive and targeted support for the medium term (up to 5 
years) that is currently unavailable.  This would help prevent 
re-admission to hospital, and support sustainable 
resettlement for those who are currently struggling to 
manage precarious accommodation in homeless 
accommodation, and unable to engage fully in resettlement 
work due to their mental ill health. 

 
Housing Services are working with Tees, Esk & Wear Valley, 
Adult Social Care and the CCG on proposals to develop a 
pathway of resettlement and support for people with mental 
ill health.  
 

Homelessness 
 
The Ordnance Lane homeless hostel of 32 units of 

accommodation has been in need of replacement for many 
years. The buildings are no longer fit for purpose from both a 
management and maintenance perspective. In 2014 the 
council approved a budget to replace the current hostel with 
a new build development of 39 units of accommodation. 
Unfortunately the developer went into liquidation but an 
opportunity arose to purchase and convert existing office 
accommodation at James House, James Street that was 
being converted into 60 flats. This was approved in March 
2017. Completion is expected in April 2018. 
 
It will allow us to consolidate existing provision on four sites 
on to one site and provide a much better service to residents 
from that single location. Two of the existing sites, Crombie 
House and Howe Hill will be converted into new council 
housing, while premises in Holgate Road will be sold off and 
the money invested into James House,  
 
More broadly, work on developing the Homeless Strategy 
2018-23 has started and will be completed in 2018 and 
planning for the impact of the Homelessness Reduction Act 
2017 from April 2018 is underway. 
 

Summary of Key Messages 
 

Some temporary accommodation is not fit for purpose 

There remains a need for ongoing planned 
maintenance of  current sheltered housing schemes.  

The Older Person’s Accommodation Programme will deliver a 
net increase of suitable provision of 682 units by 2020  

P
age 57



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             34 | P a g e  
 

There is a need for more supported accommodation for people 

with mental health problems who have complex needs. 

A replacement for the Ordnance Lane homeless hostel has been 
identified and secured at James House. 

 

Priorities 
 

Ensure that James Street opens on time and on budget and that 
a smooth transition of residents takes place. 

Ensure the supported housing strategy is used to help plan for 
future developments. 

Pending the outcome of the Mental Health Accommodation 
review we can potentially bring forward proposals for the 
conversion of some of the councils existing general needs stock 
into medium term supported accommodation for people with 
mental health problems to address the shortfall in provision for 
this client group 

Ensure that the Older Person’s Accommodation Programme 
remains on track. 

Deliver effectively the requirements of the Homeless Reduction 
Act 2017  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 58



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             35 | P a g e  
 

 

Adaptations  
 

Local authority social housing providers are expected to 
meet the cost of any adaptation work required by tenants to 
their housing stock. Each year about 400-450 council homes 
receive some form of adaptation to meet the needs of 
particular households. The investment requirement ranges 
from minor adaptations (e.g. grab-rails and ramps), more 
major adaptations (e.g. stair lifts, through floor lifts and 
assisted bathing facilities), up to making major structural 
changes. 
 

If an adapted home becomes empty we aim to match, 
through our choice based lettings system, these properties 
to tenants with appropriate needs. 
 

Although every endeavour is made to let adapted properties 
to tenants who need them, this is not always possible. There 
is an ongoing need to relocate existing adaptations, renew 
existing installations and to provide additional installations to 
meet arising need. The Housing Capital Investment 
Programme of £400k p.a. supports this provision. 
 

An additional consideration is the increased revenue cost 
associated with servicing and maintaining specialist  
equipment that is installed in the housing stock, where again 
the budgets allocated for this purpose come under increased 
pressure over time as the number of adaptations increases. 
There is an acknowledgement that the recording of this 
information and the subsequent prioritisation of re-lets to 

households with similar needs could be improved. This 
will be a priority for the Strategic Asset Plan   
 

The building of new homes to a lifetime standard – 
especially at Derwenthorpe - has provided new opportunities 
for disabled people, their carers and in particular for families 
with disabled children. Using adaptation funding these 
homes have been specially adapted to meet the needs of  
the individual disabled person, for example by the  
installation of a through floor lift in the  designated space in 
the hallway of the lifetime home rather than being installed in 
a living room.  However the design of a lifetime home also 
means that the disabled person also has the ability to 
access rooms which traditionally would not normally attract 
funding e.g. access to siblings’ bedrooms and access to a 
kitchen. This benefits not only the disabled person but also 
their carers and families.     

Summary of Key Messages 
Lifetime home standards are enabling adaptations funding to 
be spent on homes that generally more fully meet the needs 
of customers  

There is scope for making more effective and efficient use 
of adapted homes when these are available for re-letting 

Priorities 

We are introducing an ICT system which aims to provide 
appointments for customers and provide better real time 
information to ensure that adaptations are being installed 
efficiently .  

P
age 59



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             36 | P a g e  
 

 

Governance and Tenant 
Involvement 

 
Decision making 

 

City of York Council is a unitary authority delivering a wide 
range of statutory and non statutory services to local 
residents.  Working from its democratic mandate, it plays a 
key leadership role in the life of the city and is responsible 
for a wide range of services including housing, planning, 
education, transport, highways, adult social services, 
children’s services and public health.  The council is made 
up of 47 elected representatives drawn from 21 ward areas. 
 

The council has an executive structure for governance and 
decision- making. Housing Services is led by the Executive 
Member for Housing and Safer Neighbourhoods who 
delivers direct representation at meetings of the Executive 
and full c ouncil, c o u p l e d  with regular meetings with 
the Assistant Director for Housing and Community Safety, 
and York Residents' Federation. Decisions can be made 
efficiently and based on personal understanding and direct 
involvement. 
 

Housing Services is aware of the need to keep pace with the 
changing requirements of regulators, especially in regard 
to residents monitoring services.  The role of tenants in co-
regulation has been embraced by the council, with the 

introduction of the Housing Service Inspectors and the 
Tenant Scrutiny Panel. 
 
The Housing Environment Improvement Programme (HEIP) 
replaces the long standing estate improvement funding. It 
has been developed through consultation with the Residents 
Federation, customers and Officers. This new programme, 
funded for £170k p.a. will deliver local priorities identified 
through the ward team and will be co-ordinated by the HEIP 
Panel made up of tenants, councillors and Officers. 
 

Tenant Involvement 
 
Tenant involvement is critical to the delivery of an 
effective and efficient housing service. 
 
Working with our customers we have developed a range 
of involvement activities from which customers choose how 
they wish to influence services from a wide range of options 
including: 

 
 York Resident Federation and (currently) 14 Resident 

Associations. 

 Tenant Scrutiny Panel. 

 Service Inspectors. 

 Leaseholder Scrutiny Panel. 

 Leasehold Forum.  

 Equality Panel. 

 A range of satisfaction surveys, focus groups and drop-
in sessions. 

 

P
age 60



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             37 | P a g e  
 

The long-standing York Residents' Federation is the 
umbrella group for York's Residents' Associations.  With a 
formal structure, access to senior staff and the Executive 
portfolio holder as a standing member, the Federation's 
voice influences our policies, priorities and performance. 
 
Residents' Associations provide a tight focus on 
communities and localities.   
 
The Tenant Scrutiny Panel check and challenge policies and 
performance. They continue to monitor performance data and 
co-produce the Annual Tenant and Leaseholder report. 
Having reviewed the local service standards during 2011 and 
2013 they are currently investigating the effectiveness of 
producing service standards to include targets. These 
standards will be more meaningful for tenants and through 
the monitoring process undertaken by the Panel will provide 
robust improvement data for Housing.  They are committed to 
ensuring our resources are focused on achieving the 
improvements that really matter to tenants. 

 

Our established group of Service Inspectors use a wide range 
of techniques to deliver their challenging, in-depth 
inspections. They look at the services Housing provides from 
the tenant’s perspective to highlight changes that will make a 
difference.  They continue to monitor the delivery of the 
lettable standard and regularly independently inspect 
properties before they are let. They are now inspecting the 
delivery of the Tenants Choice programme which includes 
holding focus group meetings for tenants who have had the 
programme delivered in their homes. They discuss their 
findings with Tolent Living (the contractor carrying out home 

improvements on behalf of the council) and the council’s  
contracts manager to feedback the information collected. This 
ensures that improvements can be made taking tenants’ 
views into account 
 
A bimonthly new Tenant Focus Group makes sure tenants’ 
views continue to influence the voids process by contributing 
to the monitoring of the lettable standard to support 
continuous improvement.  
 
The newly formed Leasehold Scrutiny Panel has been driven 
by the Leasehold Forum and is focussing its early work on 
the issues raised at that meeting. Formed in May 2016 they 
have already produced their first Leaseholder Newsletter 
(which they intend to produce biannually to inform 
Leaseholders of their work) and have begun looking into 
gardening charges. They continue to work on clarifying 
insurance cover for leaseholders and are committed to 
working with the council to improve services for all the 
council’s leaseholders. 
 
The twice yearly Leasehold Forum is a meeting to which all 
council leaseholders receive an invite and agenda. This 
forum gives leaseholders the opportunity to meet senior 
officers and raise issues directly with them. 
 

  The emerging Equality Panel is in its very early stages with 
the aim of challenging   and supporting the direction on 
equality and diversity issues within housing services 
   

Summary of Key Messages 

P
age 61



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             38 | P a g e  
 

 
Younger people continue to be under-represented in 
shaping and influencing services and appear less interested 
in attending traditional meetings. The next year will see 
additional efforts to support the development of appropriate 
involvement methods. 

We continue to seek broader representation and 
involvement in decision making to ensure services remain 
attuned to the needs of our increasingly diverse customer 
base. We have written an engagement strategy supported 
by a four year action plan which includes working towards 
more representative involvement 

 

Priorities 

We will continue to promote new involvement activities and 
make use of social media such as Twitter and Facebook to 
reach a greater range of tenants and particularly target 
those that have not traditionally been involved to ensure 
services remain relevant and accessible to them. We have 
written an engagement strategy supported by a four year 
action plan to support this.  

Deliver the Housing Environment Improvement Programme 
(HEIP).  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 62



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             39 | P a g e  
 

 

Information Systems  
 

Current IT Infrastructure 
 
Housing Services employ a range of systems including 
commercially procured systems, web based applications 
and ad hoc databases. 
 
Housing specific systems include: 

• Northgate SX3 Integrated Housing Management 
System – (also used by Revenues and Benefits with 
an integrated database) 

• SAM – Property Database 

• Servitor Housing Repairs – Works Management 
System  

• Anite Document Management System – Housing 
Services 

• Abritas Choice Based Letting System 

• Flare/APP  (also used by Environmental  Health  and  
Trading  Standards)  

The Housing Service relies very heavily on a number of 
business critical ICT systems, with the Integrated Housing 
Management Information System (Northgate SX3) being one 
of the key applications.  This system has been upgraded with 
the existing supplier but still requires extensive development.  
 

IT infrastructure replacement project  

 
A review of current systems was carried out during 2016 and 
a budget of £1.72m has been agreed to invest in replacing 
those systems in a programme that will take around two 
years to implement.  A project team is in place and the full 
scope of the project is being finalised.  
 
The overriding strategic objectives are to transform service 
delivery and place customers at the centre of the service. It 
will remove barriers to service improvement that inhibit the 
current systems – system architecture, lack of integration, 
system interface issues, availability and cost of system 
support, failing end of life software, data quality issues, 
manual processes, duplication of effort and overly complex 
processes.   
 
In doing so it will:   
 

 Provide an improved customer experience through 
single first point of contact resolution and empower 
customers through 24/7 self service and by offering a 
range of communication channels.  

 Deliver a truly integrated solution that will reduce the 
number of current systems, eradicate manual systems 
and ‘work-arounds’, remove duplication and give a 
single reliable and consistent view of information and 
data. 

 Allow much improved sharing of comprehensive stock 
condition and management information, supporting 
investment decisions. 

 Offer intuitive, flexible and easy to navigate systems 
that support ‘straight through’ processes that reduce 

P
age 63



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             40 | P a g e  
 

human error.  

 Make available enhanced functionality including 
workflow and task management with streamlined, 
simplified processes and be capable of supporting 
mobile working solutions. 

 Reduce administration costs and overheads and 
increase revenue. 

 Deliver excellent customer service with on-line 
packages to deliver staff training, provide universal 
access to data, records, procedures and documents 
as well as providing management information that 
will allow service delivery to be monitored for quality and 
outcomes. 

 Support housing service customers to take advantage 
of the council-wide ‘super connected cities’ programme 
that takes services to customers and communities and 
facilitates customer participation in digital service 
delivery and development.  

 Promote the health and well being of residents, working 
in partnership with other agencies to provide advice, 
early intervention and preventative action to help 
support and sustain tenancies and improve quality of 
life.   

 
These benefits will feed through to customers as better 
informed decisions are taken and staff time is freed up to 
deliver front line services for customers. 
 

Summary of Key Messages 

 

Significant investment has been agreed  to replace existing 
systems with a fully integrated and future proof solution that 
will help transform service delivery 

 

Priorities 

Ensure that the IT replacement project delivers all its strategic and 
operational objectives  

Ensure that a value for money and ‘right first time’ approach 
is enabled in the delivery of services 

Continue to utilise existing technology to make services easy to 
access, high quality and efficient, effectively managed and 
responsive to the particular needs of individuals and/or customer 
groups 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 64



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             41 | P a g e  
 

 

Rent Arrears, Voids and Rent 
Setting  

 

Rent Arrears and Bad Debt Provision 
 

Rent arrears are a combination of current and former tenant 
debt, the latter being more difficult to pursue and recover. 
In recent years improved recovery and a rigorous approach 
has seen a significant reduction in former tenant arrears. 

 
A pro-active approach to pursuing current tenant debt is 
c e n t r a l  to keeping former tenant debt, and therefore the 
cost of rent written off, to a minimum. 
 

Table 6: Rent Arrears  

Financial 
Year End 

Current  
Tenants 

 % of  
Gross  
Debit 

Former 
Tenants 
 

 % of 
Gross 
Debit 

31/3/17 £703,457 2.19% £282,982 0.88% 

31/3/16 £668,449 2.05% £338,678 1.04% 

31/3/15 £659,270 2.06% £316,587 0.97% 

31/3/14 £546,325 1.74% £351,346 1.12% 

31/3/13 £497,323 1.59% £328,060 1.05% 

31/3/12 £497,263 1.68% £401,166 1.36% 

31/3/11 £443,808 1.60% £571,214 2.05% 

31/3/10 £501,002 1.82% £887,019 3.33% 

31/3/09 £588,865 2.19% £883,750 3.29% 

 
The improved performance in rent collection seen up to 
2012/13 has reversed in more recent years and this was 
not entirely unexpected given the depth and scope of 
welfare reduction policies.  
 
It is imperative that the council takes positive action to 
minimise any increase in rent arrears, thus reducing the 
financial burden on the HRA that an increase in bad debt will 
create.  
 

The HRA maintains a provision for bad debt, with the value 
of the provision reviewed annually, taking into 
consideration both the age and value of outstanding debt 
at the time. Our bad debt assumption remains at 1.5%. 

 

A number of measures are in place to mitigate against 
increasing rent arrears. As part of the October 2017 
restructure a small team of Rent Account Monitors has been 
established to manage rent accounts more closely and to 
make swift contact with tenants who miss a payment. HMOs 
will carry out any necessary visits. As noted earlier we have 
worked very closely with partners to prepare for the roll out of 
UC and our HMOs will be providing more holistic support to 
tenants in difficulty. 

 

Void Levels 

The level of void properties in the housing stock is relatively 
low compared with other areas in the country.  The average 

P
age 65



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             42 | P a g e  
 

number of properties re-let in the last three years is 704, 
including transfers and non secure tenancies in Ordnance 
Lane hostel. 
The value of rent lost as a direct result of void dwellings in 
2016/17 was £241K, representing a void loss of 0.729%. 

 
The number of voids unavailable for letting at year end 
remains low compared with other areas of the country and an 
assumption of 0.9% voids is currently considered appropriate. 

 

Rent Setting  
 

Rent restructuring was introduced in April 2002, with the 
key aim of converging rents across all social housing 
providers, whether local authority landlord or other registered 
provider. 

 
Target rents are calculated using a formula, which 
considers both property prices and average manual 
earnings, both weighted for the geographical location of 
the housing stock. Target rents for York were higher than 
the levels being charged at the outset of the regime.  
 
New proposals on rent restructuring were issued in November 
2013 which ended rent convergence in 2014/15 and 
thereafter proposed to change annual increases to CPI plus 
1% from RPI plus 0.5%.  This means the majority of rents in 
York are not at target rent.   
 
However, since the 2016 Housing and Planning Act all social 
rents are decreasing by 1% per year through to 2019/20.  

 

Summary of Key Messages 

 

The level of current tenant arrears has shown an increase 
since 2013/14  

Rents will continue to reduce by 1% annually until 2019/20 

The introduction of Rent Account Monitors will manage rent 
arrears more effectively 

 

Priorities 

Rent arrears and the impact of welfare changes will continue to be 
closely monitored   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 66



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             43 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Performance Monitoring  
 

Performance Management Framework 
 
Housing’s key actions and outcomes are contained within 
the overarching Service Plan for Housing and Community 
Safety. The actions and outcomes have been aligned to 
show how the Housing Service contributes to the priorities 
set out in the Council Plan. 

 

The actions and outcomes have been identified to 
address challenges the service faces from government and 
legislative changes, local priorities, budget and staffing 
considerations and to strengthen areas of weak performance. 
Customer expectations are an essential source in driving 
improvement. 

 

Customer influence is channelled through a number of 
sources including the annual Tenant Satisfaction survey, 
service specific customer satisfaction surveys, complaints, 
findings from Tenant Inspector reviews and feedback from 
the Resident Panel, Housing Tenant Scrutiny Panel, 
Resident Associations, Customer Panels and Focus groups. 

 

The Housing Service has an annual Service Plan which is 
regularly reviewed  and links to local, departmental and 
council priorities. 

 

Weekly and monthly operational reports are provided to 
Housing Managers to monitor performance concerning 
particular service areas and comprehensive performance 
information is available in real time via the Council’s Key 
Performance Indicator (KPI) system. 

 

Performance updates are presented to the Resident 
Federation and the Housing Tenant Scrutiny Panel. Service 
Managers attend these meetings to discuss performance 
concerns with residents. Performance issues are also 
discussed by Hous in g  Managem en t  O f f i ce r s  
attending Resident Association Meetings on request. 
 

Benchmarking 
 

The Housing Service has been a member of Housemark 
benchmarking club since 2009. This allows robust, 
comparable spend data and performance analysis in relation 
to a range of landlord activities covering 

• Overheads 
• Responsive Repairs and Void works 
• Major Works and Cyclical Maintenance including Gas 

Servicing 
• Value for money 
• Housing Management 
• Lettings 
• Rent Arrears and Collection 
• Anti-social Behaviour 
• Resident Involvement 

 

Value for Money 

P
age 67



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             44 | P a g e  
 

The key findings from the analysis are plotted on the 
Value for Money Matrix and inform service plan priorities 
and Housing’s Value for Money approach.  A full 
benchmarking report is presented to Housing Senior 
Management team and the Housing Tenant Scrutiny Panel 
also oversees benchmarking results. 

 

Community Impact Assessments 
 

Community Impact Assessments are carried out in respect 
of individual service area delivery and policy review.  Self-
financing is a change in a major financially driven process 
and therefore it is not appropriate to undertake a CIA in 
respect of the introduction of the Business Plan in its own 
right.  However, CIAs will be carried out in respect of any 
potential changes in policy or service delivery that may 
result from this different financial process. 

 

Reviewing the Business Plan 
 
The Business Plan is a dynamic, working document.  
Consequently it is essential that it is reviewed and updated 
on an annual basis. It is monitored throughout the year by 
officers, Housing Management Team, the Housing Portfolio 
Holder and the Executive, as appropriate. 

 

Summary of Key Messages 

 

Performance monitoring and value for money are key 
considerations 

We are committed to benchmarking our services to ensure we 
have external challenge on performance levels 
 
We will continue to involve residents in monitoring performance 
and shaping services 

 

Priorities 

Developing performance tools that are meaningful and accessible 
to the whole workforce. 

Utilising the results of benchmarking, tenant satisfaction survey 
and customer feedback including complaints to improve services 

Working to achieve top quartile performance in all areas whilst 
ensuring services take account of the needs of individual 
customers and communities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 68



HRA BP 2017 – 2047 FINAL NOV 2017                             45 | P a g e  
 

 

Treasury Management  

 
The HRA Self Financing reform detailed in the Government 
White Paper in November 2012 resulted in t h e  c ouncil 
paying £121.55m to the  T reasury.  This removed the 
Council from the HRA subsidy system from 1 April 2012 
and the payment made on 28 March 2012 was effectively 
the debt which relates directly to the HRA. 

 
The self-financing valuation of the local authority’s council 
housing stock was made by the Government using a 
discounted cash flow model for the authority’s social 
housing. The model was based on assumptions made by 
Government about rental income and expenditure required 
to maintain the council’s housing stock over 30 years.  It 
determined the amount paid to the Government of 
£121.55m and also the upper limit on housing debt that 
the Council may hold under the HRA self-financing reform. 

 
In order to finance the £121.55m, significant exploration of 
the funding options available to the Council were 
undertaken with the final decision being made by the 
Director of Customer Business & Support Services in 
accordance with the delegated powers as approved by 
Council in the Treasury Management Strategy dated 23 
February 2012. 

 

Loan Portfolio 
 
The objective of creating the HRA loan portfolio was to keep 
interest rates to a minimum, mitigate risk as much as 
possible and create flexibility within the portfolio. 
 
In considering the risks associated with the proposed 
borrowing strategy, a key factor was the implications of 
repaying the initial loans at a point earlier than their natural 
maturity.  This may be required for treasury management 
purposes or to provide greater flexibility within the Business 
Plan for future developments. 
 
The prudent approach to scheduling multiple loans was to 
ensure that the HRA Business Plan was capable of 
repaying debt at the point where loans were scheduled to 
mature and could seek opportunities to further invest in the 
level and quality of social housing. 
 
Based on the Public Works Loan Board’s interest rate, 
information at the time the loans were taken on 28 March 
2012, rated did not significantly vary for maturity loans form 
periods of 25 years to 50 years.  Given this, the portfolio of 
21 maturity loans was constructed taking loans with varying 
amounts, at a variety of interest rates, across different 
maturity periods in line with the HRA Business Plan. 

 

 

 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Healthwatch York: Performance Monitoring / Six Monthly Review  
 

 

Name of Provider York CVS 

Service Provided Healthwatch York 

Contract Start Date 
(Service Commencement 
Date) 
 

01 April 2017  

Contract Finish Date 
(Expiry Date) 
  

31 March 2020 

 
The aims of the performance monitoring / six monthly review process are to: 

 

 Review the achievements of the Service in delivering the agreed outcomes 

 Consider how the Service might be developed going forward 

 Identify how beneficiary needs are being delivered 

 Establish that the Service is being managed in accordance with the Agreement 
 
The information contained in this report will be used as a basis for the Annual Service 
Review, in conjunction with that information provided on a regular basis during each 
year of the Term.  
 
Six monthly performance monitoring reports will include a mixture of qualitative and 
quantitative data to ensure that the process is not simply a mechanistic one, but feeds 
into a continuous cycle of improved performance. Six monthly reports will be presented 
to Performance Management Group meetings on dates to be agreed. 
 
In addition, a six monthly performance management meeting will be held between 
representatives of the Council and Healthwatch York. The performance management 
group meetings will: 
 

 Agree additional Key Performance Indicators that will constitute six monthly 
performance summaries 

 Set annual milestones for each Key Performance Indicator as appropriate 

 Receive six monthly performance summaries, define any gaps in performance 
and discuss how these might be rectified. 

 
In addition to the six monthly reporting process it is proposed that 360 degree 
feedback on Healthwatch York activity is invited from all key stakeholders annually. 
 

  
INDEX 
Section 1: To be completed six monthly 
Section 2:  To be completed six monthly  
Section 3: To be completed six monthly   

Page 71 Agenda Item 5



2 

 

 

Signature on behalf of Provider 

Signature 

               Siân Balsom 

Name  
Siân Balsom 

Date  
03/11/17 

 
 
 

SECTION 1: Service Provided 01/04/17 - 30/09/17 

 
What have been the main focus areas of Healthwatch York during the last six 
months?   
 
Qtr 1 

 Published our guide “What’s out there for people with dementia, their families 

and friends in York” 

 Published our report on Appointment Changes at Unity Health 

 Published our 4
th
 Annual Report on 30 June 2017 

 

Qtr 2 
 

 In partnership with City of York Council and International Service, ran an event 

for Co-production week on 5 July 2017 – People and Places: York Goes 

Global – to encourage greater use of co-production principles in York 

 Attended the Healthwatch England conference, where we were highly 

commended for our advice and information work 

 Held our 4
th

 Annual Meeting on 25 July 2017, attended by over 60 people 

 In partnership with York People First and York Human Rights City, held an 

event raising awareness of Health Action Plans and Annual Health Checks for 

people with learning difficulties 

 Hosted the consultation on York’s draft Mental Health Strategy 

 

Key Performance Indicators to include: 
 

 The impact of Healthwatch activity on community / commissioners / service 
providers – including progress towards Public Engagement Reports, 
involvement in key strategic meetings. 

 Feedback mechanisms used by Healthwatch to inform participants and the 
wider public on the outcomes of the issues covered by Healthwatch. 

 Communication and Reach - evidence of public, patient, carer and user-group 
engagement with / participation in Healthwatch  

 Financial / Spend  monitoring 

 e.g. The number, frequency and type of methods used by the Host to engage 
with individuals, organisations and groups.  (captured in quarterly Information 
and Signposting Reports) 

 The outcomes of any visit to Health and Social Care premises in York. 

Page 72



3 

 

 
What progress has been made during the last quarter in respect of the above? Have 
you identified any barriers to achievement of agreed outcomes? 

 
Impact of Activity / Public Engagement Reports 

 
Impact of activity: 

 
Our Annual Meeting in July aims to share the impact of our work with interested 
parties in York. This year, we focused on: 

 

 the difference our work on wheelchair services had made 

 our work on Patient Led Assessment of the Care Environment 

 how people have helped us make a difference 

 
We also presented our annual ‘Making a 
Difference’ awards. These celebrate individuals, 
teams and organisations that are making a 
difference locally. This year, we made 19 awards. 
12 people collected their awards in person. 
 
The awards were also covered by York Press: 
 
http://www.yorkpress.co.uk/news/15476866.Healt
h_and_social_care_staff_honoured_in_awards/ 

 
 

 
 
Between March and June we asked York St John University to complete a 
stakeholder evaluation, as required by our contract. They provided the following 
report: 
 
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Healthwatch-York-
Evaluation-June-2017-FINAL-report.pdf  
 
The key findings from the 27 respondents were positive.  

 74% agreed ‘Health care services in York have been improved as a direct result 

of the work of Healthwatch York’ 

 62.5% agreed that ‘Social care services in York have been influenced as a direct 

result of the work of Healthwatch York’.  

 93% agreed that ‘Healthwatch York is responsive to the needs of York residents’ 

and  

 89% agreed that ‘Healthwatch York understands what is happening in relation to 

health and social services in York.’  

 89% agreed that ‘Healthwatch York speaks up about the provision of health and 

social care services in York’ and  

Page 73

http://www.yorkpress.co.uk/news/15476866.Health_and_social_care_staff_honoured_in_awards/
http://www.yorkpress.co.uk/news/15476866.Health_and_social_care_staff_honoured_in_awards/
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Healthwatch-York-Evaluation-June-2017-FINAL-report.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Healthwatch-York-Evaluation-June-2017-FINAL-report.pdf


4 

 

 85% agreed that ‘Healthwatch York uses the reviews, words and stories of 

service users to show the impact of health and social care services in York.  

 96% agreed that ‘Healthwatch York involves the public in the work they do’.  

 92% agreed that ‘Healthwatch York involves partners and service providers in 

the work they do. 

 88% agreed that ‘Healthwatch York advocates for people's active involvement in 

their health and social care 

 
We also ran an awareness survey for members of the public, receiving over 200 
responses. Details of this can be found here: 
 
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/HWY-Awareness-
Survey-2017.pdf  
  
This highlighted that the majority of respondents did not fully understand what we do 
and how we could help them. They were not aware of our information and advice 
service. They did not know about our feedback centre, although many said they’d be 
happy to use it. Our most successful marketing tools have been word of mouth and 
our information events and stands. This has reinforced our determination to establish 
new information stands across the city.  

 
Between May and August 2017 we reviewed and provided feedback on Quality 
Accounts/Reports for five local service providers: York Teaching Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust, Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (TEWV), The 
Retreat, Yorkshire Ambulance Service, St Leonards Hospice. The impact of this work 
is in supporting these partners with raising and maintaining quality standards and 
highlighting areas of best practice.  
 
Through our partnership work with City of York Council within our Care Home 
Assessment programme, we enhance the quality of City of York Council’s reports to 
care home providers. We also increase the capacity of council staff to consult with 
local residents.  
 
Public Engagement Report 
 
We have published 1 report during the first 6 months of financial year 2017/18. This 
can be found here: 
 
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Unity-Health-
Appointment-Changes-a-Healthwatch-York-report-1.pdf  
 
Key strategic meetings 
 
Through the York Goes Global event, and our continued work with City of York 
Council around co-production we are supporting increased awareness and use of co-
production principles across the health and care system.  
 

Page 74

https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/HWY-Awareness-Survey-2017.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/HWY-Awareness-Survey-2017.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Unity-Health-Appointment-Changes-a-Healthwatch-York-report-1.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/Unity-Health-Appointment-Changes-a-Healthwatch-York-report-1.pdf


5 

 

The event with York People First and York Human Rights City raised awareness of 
annual health checks and health action plans for people with learning difficulties. 
Heidi Chan, York Human Rights City, explained what human rights are, how everyone 
has them, and our rights in health and social care. Cheryl Lythgoe from Priory 
Medical Group gave an excellent talk explaining what happens at an annual health 
check. Karen Murray shared poems which gave insight into people’s experiences. 
Members of York People First talked through Health Action Plans and why they 
matter. For more information about the day, you can see That’s York’s TV coverage 
here: 
 
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/news/thats-tv-york-cover-our-health-event-for-
people-with-learning-difficulties/ 
 
We also attended the Healthwatch England conference and ran a session for local 
Healthwatch about our work on Patient Led Assessment of the Care Environment 
(PLACE). We believe our approach locally promotes best practice between local 
Healthwatch and local providers, and we are keen to share this with our colleagues 
across the network. 
 
Communication, Engagement & Reach 
 
Staff and volunteer hours by meeting type 

 
Staff hours

 
 

Volunteer hours 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

Total 

HW Meetings 

HW Visits 

Information Event  

Representing 

Staff Development 

Volunteer Development 

(blank) 

Page 75

https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/news/thats-tv-york-cover-our-health-event-for-people-with-learning-difficulties/
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/news/thats-tv-york-cover-our-health-event-for-people-with-learning-difficulties/


6 

 

 
For more details regarding our engagement work, we are happy to share our 
engagement calendar, giving details of all events we have held and participated in. 
 
During strategic meetings, both Healthwatch York staff and volunteer representatives 
complete Reps Reports. These reports are shared monthly by email to partners and 
volunteers as part of our monthly e-bulletin. We also share the reports via our 
website, from May as a separate Reports pdf. You can find these here: 
 
April bulletin - https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/April-
bulletin.pdf  
May reports - https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/May-
meeting-reports.pdf 
June reports - https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/June-
reports.pdf 
July reports - https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/July-
meeting-reports.pdf  
August reports - https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/09/August-meeting-reports.pdf 
September reports - https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2014/10/September-meeting-reports.pdf  
 
Outcomes of visits to Health and Social Care premises in York     
Our care home visits contributed to and enhanced 15 City of York Council care home 
reports, having engaged with 85 residents in total. 
 
Readability Work 
Our readability volunteers have an interest in supporting local providers and 
commissioners to improve their patient information. Over this half year we have 
reviewed 30 documents, 21 for York Teaching Hospital, 6 for City of York Council, 1 
for NHS Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group and 1 for the Public Health 
Team. 
 
Partner Programme 
We have 39 voluntary and community sector organisations who are signed up as 
Healthwatch York partners, and 2 pharmacy partner organisations. We invite our 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

Total 

HW Meetings 

HW Visits 

Information Event  

Representing 

Staff Development 

Volunteer Development 

(blank) 

Page 76

https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/April-bulletin.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/April-bulletin.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/May-meeting-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/May-meeting-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/June-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/June-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/July-meeting-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/July-meeting-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/August-meeting-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/August-meeting-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/September-meeting-reports.pdf
https://www.healthwatchyork.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/September-meeting-reports.pdf


7 

 

partners to our quarterly Assembly, to get involved in conversations about what is 
happening locally in health and social care. We also work closely with them to 
progress our work plan reports.  
 
Volunteers 
At the end of September 2017 we had 50 volunteers covering a range of volunteer 
roles. These include Representatives, Community Champions, Enter & View, Care 
Home Assessor, Research, Marketing and Communications, Readability Panel, 
Office Support and Leadership Group members, plus our new Ways to Wellbeing 
(W2W) volunteer role, in partnership with the W2W Co-ordinator at York CVS. We are 
piloting this role jointly. We believe this has mutual benefits – to bring in additional 
volunteers who are passionate about supporting people to improve their wellbeing, 
and to provide a good volunteer recruitment process from existing resources rather 
than reducing the capacity within W2W.   
 
We continue to support out volunteers with regular meetings, most of which are 
specific to the roles they carry out. To mark volunteer week in June we presented all 
our volunteers with a certificate in appreciation of the work they do for us.   
 
In August we ran a volunteer survey to find out what our volunteers feel about 
volunteering with us, how well they feel we communicate with them and provide them 
with information. We discussed the results of the survey at the volunteer development 
day we held in September. 
 
Ways to Wellbeing volunteers – our role / activity to date 
We held a training event on 27 September for this new group of volunteers. This was 
attended by 2 existing HWY volunteers and 3 staff members, alongside the W2W Co-
ordinator. We have also signed up 2 brand new volunteers, referred by the W2W Co-
ordinator. We are providing this volunteering opportunity as a partnership with W2W.  
 
Engagement 
Community engagement has taken place at a variety of events throughout the city. 

We have maintained our regular outreach activity, with monthly drop-ins at Lidgett 

Grove, St Sampsons, Spurriergate Centre, Café Nelli, Fulford Church, Oaken Grove 

Community Café, Whitworth’s Pharmacy and West Offices. This means our 

volunteers have established a presence within community venues, becoming a 

familiar, welcome presence. We have also established new regular opportunities at 

Ellerby’s Hub at York Hospital. We are working with Explore York to look at ways to 

link with their mobile library service.  

Sadly, our monthly drop in at Sainsbury’s Monks Cross came to an end during this 

period. They received instructions from head office to limit the number of charities 

holding stalls at their sites.  

We have also had information stands at annual events throughout the city, including 

Dunnington Information Fair, West Bank Park Summer Fair, Fulford Show, Holgate 

Residents Celebration, MS Society Fun Day. We were booked to have a stand at 

Page 77



8 

 

Rowntree Park birthday party but unfortunately the event was cancelled due to lack of 

funding. 

As part of our work on access to NHS dentists in York we ran our dental survey 

(online and in paper) from mid-July until early October. We received 372 responses, 

which will be analysed and included in our work plan report early next year. 

We have sent out 1 quarterly magazine – Spring 2017 - produced and distributed by 

post to 332 individuals and 23 organisations and by email to 511 organisations and 

516 individuals as well as being available through our website, and distributed at our 

information stands at community venues. We distributed 750 paper copies in total. 

We also sent out our Annual Report in July 2017 to 1078 contacts, and by post to 332 

individuals and 23 organisations.  

@healthwatchyork had 2,026 followers as at 30 September 2017, continuing a steady 

increase. Over the 6 months from April to September we gained 48,091 twitter 

impressions, 120 retweets, 196 link clicks and 153 likes. Our most popular tweets 

were: 

April 

Stirring stuff from @RachaelMaskell - “an assault on the liberty and rights of one of 

us is an assault on us all.” #yorkhumanrights 

2048 Impressions, 20 engagements, 8 retweets, 7 likes 
 

May  
We love feedback! Share your views on @HaxbyGroup and other health & care 
services via our website #yorkhealth 
https://twitter.com/HaxbyGroup/status/865162683645128704  

528 impressions, 3 engagements, 1 retweet, 1 like 
 
June 

Thanks to @yorkpress for helping spread the word on our new guide to dementia 
support in York. 
http://www.yorkpress.co.uk/news/15325127.New_dementia_support/ … #yorkhealth 

1086 impressions, 31 engagements, 14 likes, 10 link clicks, 6 retweets 
 
July 

With @ValeofYorkCCG for one of their public engagement events. Honest 
conversations about cash and care. #yorkhealth 

1508 impressions, 20 engagements, 4 retweets, 2 replies, 2 profile clicks, 1 like 
 

August 

Should we be concerned our local NHS is out of cash? Tune in to @daviddunninguk 
on Minster FM at 3 to hear more. #yorkhealth #fairshare 

1355 impressions, 19 engagements, 3 retweets, 3 likes, 3 profile clicks 
 
September 

Page 78

https://twitter.com/RachaelMaskell
https://twitter.com/hashtag/yorkhumanrights?src=hash
https://twitter.com/HaxbyGroup
https://twitter.com/hashtag/yorkhealth?src=hash
https://t.co/zGbB5nPEwk
https://twitter.com/yorkpress
https://t.co/4c5PKBQTnB
https://twitter.com/hashtag/yorkhealth?src=hash
https://twitter.com/ValeofYorkCCG
https://twitter.com/hashtag/yorkhealth?src=hash
https://twitter.com/daviddunninguk
https://twitter.com/hashtag/yorkhealth?src=hash
https://twitter.com/hashtag/fairshare?src=hash


9 

 

Thanks to @yorkpeoplefirst @priorymedicalgp @YorkHumanRights & 
@ThatsYork for making #yourhealthyourcare a success. 
https://m.youtube.com/watch?time_continue=344&ebc=ANyPxKpYC-
Gpd_XOkcd3XgKDS9wzPNdKBKGxdjDCNACTOzXfXWKU5kJr8AFohhSfexzY1uLZ6
-xiA0wNg-pSfest5L3TjcxDXA&v=H-_KSBUn5Jg  

1064 impressions, 19 engagements, 3 retweets, 3 likes, 2 replies 
 
Logging issues 
We logged 155 issues. This includes some double counting as people may talk about 
2 or 3 different organisations within 1 issue and they are logged against 
organisations.   

 

 
 
Key themes from the reported issues and feedback centre 
 
Access to services 
There were a number of issues regarding access to services. A key theme was long 
waiting times. There were 8 comments about waiting times for dentistry 
appointments, and 8 comments about waiting times for GP appointments. There were 
also comments about the waiting times for York Wheelchair Centre assessments and 
adaptations, and for assessments for services such as Continuing Healthcare and 
Occupational Therapy services.  
 
There were also records of hospital appointments and operations being cancelled, 
including the cancelling of operations with little notice for shoulder replacement 
surgery, knee surgery, and for the removal of a stent, causing the individual bleeding 
and pain. There were concerns raised regarding how long individuals had to wait to 
be seen at York hospital, as well as an individual commenting on their experience of 
rude staff at a blood clinic, and being turned away before closing time. 
There was some negative feedback regarding cancelled appointments at the 
Magnolia Clinic – Imaging Reporting, and the lack of district nurses being able to visit. 
One individual commented about the negative response from a first response team 
member at Limetrees Child, Adolescent and Family Unit, who they felt did not take 
them seriously. 

0 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

35 

40 

45 

50 Request for Information 

Point of view 

Concern 

Compliment 

Complaint 

Page 79

https://twitter.com/yorkpeoplefirst
https://twitter.com/priorymedicalgp
https://twitter.com/YorkHumanRights
https://twitter.com/ThatsYork
https://twitter.com/hashtag/yourhealthyourcare?src=hash
https://t.co/7DUltUBu2J
https://t.co/7DUltUBu2J
https://t.co/7DUltUBu2J


10 

 

 
Some services were commented on as being inaccessible due to the distance people 
had to travel, including accessing NHS dentistry, as well as specialist treatment such 
as cancer treatment and for lymphedema.  
 
The charges associated with certain services such as having medical questionnaires 
signed off, the cost of prescriptions, and to get assistance with plane travel for 
someone with a long term health condition affecting mobility were also raised as a 
concern.  
 
Care 
There were a number of reports of both good and bad care received. These included 
issues around mental health support from both primary and secondary services, poor 
care following admission to hospital, including an individual whose diabetes was not 
dealt with well during a stay in hospital, and end of life care. A number of positive 
comments were received about services following admission or referral to hospital, 
including for cancer screening, as well as how staff dealt with the recent IT crash. 
There were also 4 comments specifically praising the work of Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service.  
 
Through our feedback centre, we received positive comments regarding care from 
Yorkshire Ambulance Service, as well as from Magnolia Centre – Imaging Unit, with 
comments noting the staff being caring, welcoming and professional. A number of GP 
surgeries were mentioned positively from understanding reception staff to good 
responses from Doctors calling patients back.  
 
Our feedback centre has also gathered comments about York Hospital regarding 
good care following operations, and positive experiences going to the Pain Clinic and 
whilst an inpatient in the Acute Medical Unit. Additionally, the physiotherapy services 
and the out-of-hours GP appointments at York Hospital got positive feedback about 
the quality of care. Yorkshire Fatigue Clinic was given very positive reviews from 
several individuals, with comments about helpful services, empathetic staff team, 
along with the blood clinic, with comments about the quick service and friendly staff. 
 
Good care was reported at Acomb Garth in association with end of life care. There 
were also positive comments about the helpful support from Ways to Wellbeing. We 
also had two positive comments about different dental practices regarding calming 
patients’ fears about visiting the dentist. 
Issues with communication was the theme of a number of concerns raised, including 
with getting mental health support, and in association with cancelling of appointments 
and operations.  
 
Changes in Provision 
Concerns around changes to provision were reported. These included the impact of 
the introduction of the CCG eligibility criteria for surgery, and the loss of services due 
to cuts, such as the pain clinic. There was also concerns raised about Healthwatch 
York no longer being involved with a number of activities in health and social care in 
the city, including Healthwatch York no longer running the wheelchair forum, the 
removal of Healthwatch York as a non-voting member of the CCG Governing Body.  

Page 80



11 

 

 
Social 
There were several reports related to social care, including concern over getting the 
right placement of care home, quality of home care, and who is responsible for 
safeguarding the quality of home care, as well as concern regarding cuts to youth 
provision. We had 2 comments about housing; one positive comment following the 
quick reaction to get the individual’s heating fixed, as well as a negative comment 
about a lack of resolution following ongoing housing issue.  
 
Signposting and advice 
We continue to record signposting activity through the issues log where this is 
received in the office via phone calls or emails. We signposted 60 people to 73 
organisations over the past six months.  
 
We also keep a full log of all signposting contact through community activities and 
events, much of which is through our Community Champion volunteers. They have 
been at events attended by over 2294 people, speaking with 845 individuals.  
 
We continue to share details of the “Big 5” signposting agencies (First Call 50+, 
Family Information Service, York CAB, York Carers Centre, York Advocacy) – for 
example, we provided 27 people with details of York Advocacy over the six month 
period, and 31 people took information about York Carers Centre. We also distributed 
465 copies of our major publications (the Directory, Mental Health Guide, dementia 
guide, Magazine and our leaflets), and 62 other leaflets covering mental health, 
dementia, older people’s services, caring, young people and public health.  
We continue to find that our guide to mental health and wellbeing is very popular. We 
understand these are being used by a number of GP practices, pharmacies, and City 
of York Council staff, schools, and other voluntary groups to signpost customers to 
support. We have now run out of the second edition and are looking to source 
additional funds to print a 3

rd
 edition.  

 
We also published our guide to dementia support in York this half year. We had 1,000 
copies printed, and have distributed all of them over the past six months. We are now 
looking for further funding to support a second edition. We have been told that the 
hospital alone can distribute over 60 per month to people newly diagnosed with 
dementia. 
 
We were highly commended at the national Healthwatch Network Awards in July for 
our work in providing accurate, reliable, relevant and useful information for people 
about local services.  
 
Future Developments 
What future improvements or developments do you expect/hope to implement in the 
next six months? 
 
Our reports on Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) and Home 
Care Services will be presented at the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting on 8 
November 2017.  
 

Page 81



12 

 

We have been part of the working group preparing for the CQC Local System Review 
being held in York from 30 October to 3 November 2017. We hope to be part of the 
plans to address any recommendations made. 
 
We will be working with colleagues at City of York Council to publish a report about 

our Care Home Assessor programme. We believe this demonstrates best practice 

working between a local Healthwatch and Local Authority, and wish to share our work 

more widely with the Healthwatch network and beyond. We are also working with 

CYC to expand the scope of this work to sheltered housing with extra care. Linked 

with this, we have secured funding through City of York’s Safeguarding Adults Board 

to prepare an information guide for people about care homes. This will provide details 

of where to find out more information, how to know what good looks like, signs of 

neglect, and how to provide feedback and raise concerns. 

 
We will be writing a report about our work on PLACE, to raise awareness of our work 
in this area. We will also be delivering a session about PLACE for South Tees NHS 
Trust and liaising with Healthwatch South Tees about how they can take this work 
forward in future. 
 
We will be writing up our findings on access to dental services in York. This report is 
expected to go to the Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2018. 
 
Barriers 
We have been working with City of York Council officers around the monitoring of 
action taken against recommendations made within our reports. As we are a small 
Healthwatch with limited capacity to follow up on reports once published, the lack of a 
clear process has been a barrier to understanding the impact of our work. It has been 
suggested that where updates are not forthcoming, we add this information into our 
routine reporting to the Health & Adult Social Care Policy & Scrutiny Committee, 
where potential actions to take can be considered. We began implementing this 
approach in March, and have seen some partners respond, but there are still 
considerable gaps and progress against recommendations remains unclear in a 
significant proportion of areas.  
 
We have seen a significant rise in the number of organisations who can no longer 

routinely provide printed copies of their own publicity materials. This includes 

voluntary organisations, for example Citizens Advice York and York Advocacy, but 

also includes private providers delivering services commissioned by statutory bodies. 

We are already concerned about access to information in a ‘digital-by-default’ society, 

and it presents particular challenges for us as a signposting, information and advice 

service.  

 

We have not yet identified further funding to produce a third edition of our mental 

health guide, or a second edition of our dementia guide. Tees Esk and Wear Valleys 

NHS Foundation Trust funded the second edition of the mental health guide, and 

funding from Joseph Rowntree Foundation covered the first edition of the dementia 

guide, but these were not recurring funding sources. Feedback received through a 

Page 82



13 

 

number of forums, including the recent CCG events, confirmed how valued these 

guides were,  

 

SECTION 2: Staff training and development /  Healthwatch Volunteers 
 

Details of all training courses undertaken in the last six months: 

Course title No’s Of Staff / 
volunteers Attended 

Refresher 
Yes            No 

 Introduction to advocacy training 4S   

 Safeguarding training 4S, 9V (May) 
1V (June) 
5V (4 August) 
1S 1V(14 August) 

  
 
 
 

 Volunteer Induction (23 May) 4V 
(23 June) 5V 

  

 Disability Awareness Training 
(part 2 induction) 

(23 Jun) 1V 
(20 Jul) 3V 

  

 Ways to Wellbeing training 3S, 5V   

 Mental Health First Aid training 1V   

 Autism Reality Experience 1V (Sep)   

Page 83



14 

 

 Please provide a brief update on the roles / achievements of staff and 
Healthwatch Board members during the last quarter. 

Carol Pack, Information Officer, has led on our information work, including our quarterly 
magazine and our monthly volunteer and partner bulletin. This involves significant amounts of 
work to very tight deadlines. Carol also leads our Care Home Assessor programme, including 
training volunteers and accompanying them on their first visits. She has established quarterly 
meetings for this role, increasing information sharing, and helping resolve any issues or concerns 
volunteers have. In addition over this period she has produced our Annual Report (published in 
June) and our guide to local services for people with dementia, their friends and families 
(published in May). The guide, which was produced with funding from the Joseph Rowntree 
Foundation, is available to download from our website. Carol has also been working with facilities 
staff at York Hospital to design and plan a joint training session on PLACE (Patient Led 
Assessment of the Care Environment), which will be delivered in November.  
 
Helen Patching, Project Support Officer, provides administrative support for volunteer meetings, 
and our quarterly assembly. She leads the Readability programme, sending out documents to 
volunteers and collating responses. She also provides administrative support around the care 
home assessment programme. 
  
Siân Balsom, Manager, attends a wide range of strategic meetings, maintaining the Healthwatch 
presence at Health and Wellbeing Board and other partnership boards within the City of York 
area. She has also led our work with the council and other partners around co-production. She 
also worked closely with York Human Rights City and York People First to run the ‘Your Health, 
Your Care’ event for people with learning difficulties.  
 
Carole Money, Project Support Officer, has worked with the Community Champion volunteers’ 
co-ordinating the regular events around the city and organising new activities at Ellerby’s Hub at 
the hospital and Acomb Library.  There have been discussions with York Explore about working 
with the newly launched Mobile Library service next year. 
 
Abbie Myers, Business Admin Apprentice, joined our team in August 2017. She has been 
learning about our work, and has taken on most of our social media work. She has attended a 
number of information events, taken notes at meetings, and helped our volunteers prepare for 
events. She is doing brilliantly at settling in to the team, has a positive, can-do approach. She 
tackles every task put to her, and frequently amazes people when they find out she is only 18. 
We are now big advocates for taking on apprentices, and love having her with us. 
 
Catherine Scott, Policy and Research Officer, joined our team in August 2017. She wrote up our 
CAMHS and Home Care report which will be presented at the Health  
and Wellbeing Board meeting in November. She has taken on responsibility for co-ordinating our 
Research Volunteers, and is collating the data they have gathered as part of the background 
work she is doing for our dental services report. She is starting to look at our processes for 
research and our resources for doing this. She has also worked closely with the University of 
York around student mental health, and is exploring future research opportunities.  
 
John Clark, our Chair, has continued to chair our Leadership Group meetings, creating a helpful 
and supportive environment within which to discuss the challenges of delivering a successful 
Healthwatch. He is also now our substitute on the Health and Wellbeing Board, as well as 
attending the Voice and Involvement Group meetings co-ordinated by City of York Council. He 
also chairs our Assembly meetings, making sure volunteers, partners and key stakeholders have 
opportunity to debate key issues in health and social care, and raise matters of concern or 
interest.  
 

Page 84



15 

 

 

Staff Support 

How often are staff 
meetings held? 

We have recently implemented monthly team catch ups, to 
help us better plan and co-ordinate our work. In addition, 
we have held development days for the staff and volunteers 
this half year. We also attend the weekly York CVS start the 
week meetings. 

How often do staff 
receive supervision 
from a senior? 

At least every 8-12 weeks. 

How often are staff 
formally appraised? 

We have completed annual appraisals in the past, and are 
currently reviewing our systems.  

Number of staff 
appraised in last 
period: 

0 
 

Complaints/Commendations about Healthwatch York 

How many informal complaints have been received? 0 

How many formal complaints have been received? 0 

 

SECTION 3: Additional Comments 

Please list any additional details/comments/recommendations that you wish to 
make. 
 

 
Draft finances (Apr-Sep) 

 
CYC 

budget 
CYC only Total 

Staff costs (salaries & 
expenses) 

£39,975 £39,975 £41,191.14 

Volunteer expenses £1,500 £1,500 £1,507.28 

Local Administration £11,350 £11,303.26 £11,303.26 

Other £5,935 £5,981.74 £19,310.19 

 
   

Total £58,760 £58,760 £73,311.87 

 
Please note these figures are unconfirmed, and may be subject to change. 
 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Health, Housing and Adult Social Care Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 

15 November 2017 

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Legal & Governance 

 

Urgent Care Resilience Plans 2017-18 Cover Report 

Summary 

1. This cover report introduces a presentation by York Teaching Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust on the current and ongoing schemes which 
support the Urgent Care and Whole System Resilience (winter pressures 
monies), along with the key drivers and key risks associated with its 
Winter Plan 2017-18. 

 Background 

2. The A&E Steering Group meets monthly to review ongoing schemes, 
discuss current issues, describe progress against ongoing action plans 
and agree what needs to be escalated to the A&E Delivery Board 

3. This Committee received an update in May 2017 on how the Trust   
handled pressures on the service during the winter months 2016-17 
which included initiatives expected to lead to further improvements over 
coming winters. 

4. The Trust has been working closely with colleagues in primary care, 
Yorkshire Ambulance Service and local authorities to ensure patients are 
prioritised according to need. 

5. In July 2017 the National Urgent and Emergency Care Director, NHS 
England and NHS Improvements wrote to all A&E Delivery Boards 
setting out guidelines for winter planning for 2017/18. 

6. It stated that in developing overarching winter plans, Local A&E Delivery 
Boards should prioritise: 

 Demand and capacity plans; 

 Front door processes and primary care streaming  

Page 87 Agenda Item 6



 

 Flow through the UEC pathway  

 Effective discharge processes  

 Planning for peaks in demand over weekends and bank holidays 

 Ensuring the adoption of best practice as set out in the NHS 
Improvement guide: Focus on Improving Patient Flow. 



7. The key drivers behind the Trust winter plan 2017/18 are emergency 
department performance linked to financial income; national standards 
set for all partners; national standards and good practice for hospital 
flow; some, but limited, additional winter monies; enhanced role of A&E 
Delivery Board to drive local system plans and additional scrutiny and 
overview from NHS Improvement. 

8. Key risks include workforce availability; commitment and financial 
support from partners; the ability of partners to mobilise system plans ‘in 
time’ and the ability to create the capacity required.  

9. The Trust’s key standards in its system response risk assessment 
update are strong front door streaming; patient flow; delayed transfer of 
care; mental health support for the emergency department; enhances 
NHS 111 provision; extended capacity and access to primary care; care 
home support; urgent treatment centres and ambulance response times. 
 
Options 

10. This report is for information only. 
 
Implications 

11. Financial – financial responsibility lies with the Vale of York Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

 Human Resources (HR) – HR implications are the responsibility of 
the providing organisation or team 

 Equalities – the winter plan is designed to ensure patients are 
prioritised according to need and everyone gets the best possible 
health outcome. 

 Legal – Contracts for different schemes are drawn up and reviewed 
by the various providers 

 Crime and Disorder – there are no crime and disorder implications        

Page 88



 

 Information Technology (IT) – there are no IT implications 

 Property – there are no property implications 

 Other – there are no other implications 

Risk Management 
 
12. Key risks in the winter plan are identified in this cover report. 

 
Recommendations 
 

13. Members are asked to note the content of this report and the Trust’s 
presentation and question the Trust representative should they have any 
concerns around the winter plan 2017/18  
 
Reason: So Members are aware of Urgent Care and Whole System 
Resilience Plans 2017/18 

Contact Details 

Author: 
Steve Entwistle 
Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 01904 554279 
steven.entwistle@york.gov.uk 

Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Andrew Docherty 
Assistant Director – Legal & Governance 
Tel: 01904 551004 

  

Report Approved  Date 1/11/2017 

     
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A – Winter Plan Briefing Presentation 
 
Abbreviations 
 
All abbreviations used throughout the report should be listed here in full e.g. 
CSMC = Corporate & Scrutiny Management Committee. 

Page 89

mailto:steven.entwistle@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Winter Plan -2017/18

Key Drivers:

• ED performance linked to our financial income – high value and weighted towards  March 2018

• National standards set for all Partners

• National standards and Good Practice for Hospital Flow – 9 key standards for partners to deliver (4 
targeted at acute Hospitals)

• Some, but limited additional winter monies – 200k for the whole of Humber Coast and Vale STP

• Enhanced role of A&E Delivery Board to drive local system plans

• Additional scrutiny and overview from NHSI 

Key risksKey risks

• Workforce availability

• Commitment and financial support from partners

• Ability of partners to mobilise system plans ‘in time’

• Ability to create the capacity required

Work to date:

• A&E Delivery Board Workshop – August 2017 

• Continued work with Partners

• Final submission 13th of October

• Directorate level planning and submission of plans

• System wide actions with partners 

P
age 91



Update and Risk Assessment - System Response
Key Standard October 12th 2017 Comments

Front Door Streaming Trust has strong and developing model on both 

sites

Bid for additional resource to support warm 

transfers from ED to front door primary care

Increased focus on non admitted breaches

Patient Flow

92% bed occupancy

Trusted Assessor

7 day discharging

SAFER principles

Key areas of achieving 92% occupancy, Trusted 

Assessor and 7 day discharging are key 

workstreams (already in place).

SAFER embedded on some wards, continue to 

work with directorates to embed on all wards

Focus on non admitted breach numbers for 

both sites

High risk if out of hospital solutions are not 

delivered across our community and 

residential settings by system partners

Nurse staffing levels inadequate to provide 

winter wards

Medical Director, Chief Nurse and COO have 

prioritised delivery of  SAFER principles

DTOC – maximum 3.5% occupancy Both LA’s are challenging this target. Both 

escalated to national BCF committee

CYC committed 300k to support additional 

social work support and capacity at weekends

Mental Health – support for ED Model being developed for York

Not as rigorous for Scarborough - Risk

Improved options for the York site as part of 

successful business case (Core 24)

Enhance NHS 111 provision Workforce constraints Additional capacity at risk due to workforce 

constraints

Primary care – extended access and capacity No firm commitments to take this forward High Risk – financial and capacity constraints 

Care Home Support Trust working with system partners developing 

work with care homes

Key part of YTH strategy

Urgent Treatment Centres Scarborough – strong model. York meets most 

of the standards

Work ongoing to develop model on both sites

Ambulance Response Times YAS part of  a national pilot. Working towards 

standards

Continue to develop working arrangements 

and identify opportunities for collaboration 

and improvement

P
age 92



Internal Focus - Key Actions to improve ECS 

Performance

(1) Focus on non admitted breaches

• Understanding Non Admitted breach profile

• Each 4 non admitted breaches equates to 1.5% impact on Trust 
performance against the ECS

• Prioritisation of EPIC role 

• Redesign of ED footprint – Use of Observation Bay for rapid access • Redesign of ED footprint – Use of Observation Bay for rapid access 
to the Frailty Team.

(2) Focus on Flow out of ED

• Role and admitting times for AAU

• Increased presence and rigour to support hospital flow

• Development and implementation of Operational Matrons to 
support patient flow, decision making and timely discharge

P
age 93



Internal Focus on Out of Hospital Care

• Invest in additional capacity - Community Response 

Team

• Invest in capacity to support a night sitting service

• Invest in support to care for patients who can have IV 

antibiotics administered at homeantibiotics administered at home

• CCGs to invest in capacity to support assessments for 

continuing health care, ‘out of the acute bed base’

• Local Authority to achieve a maximum of 3.5% acute bed 

days attributed to delays for adult social health care

• In reach to care homes to support care and avoid 

admissions to ED

P
age 94



Internal Focus on ‘Flow’

• No additional winter ward on either site

• Open up assessment areas 24/7 from January 2018 
(Scarborough)

• Planned use of elective orthopaedic capacity for 
medical admissions – January 2018 (York)medical admissions – January 2018 (York)

• Curtail elective activity January/February and focus on 
day case surgery where possible

• Additional ambulance capacity to support prompt 
discharge

• Refocus the work of the operational flow team with 
support from operational matrons

P
age 95



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 
Agenda Item  

 

   

Health, Housing and Adult Social Care Policy 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

15 November  2017  

Report of the Assistant Director of Adult Social Care 
 

Future Focus Update Report: 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1 To inform the committee about the progress of the Adult Social Care 
Transformation Programme “Future Focus”.  

2 To update the committee on the features and attributes of the 
TARGET operating model.  

3 To update the committee on the planned measures and outcomes by 
which the operating model will be monitored and evaluated. 
 

Background  
 

4 Demand for Adult Social Care rises each year. People are living 
longer into old age requiring support, there are more people living 
longer with complex long term conditions and there are increasing 
numbers of young adults in transition to adult services with complex 
needs. 

5 This increased demand for services coincides with significant 
financial pressure arising from reduced Local Authority funding, 
legislative changes driven by the Care Act and an increased public 
expectation of Adult Social Care and rightly an expectation of high 
quality, personalised and flexible support for those who are eligible 
for care. 

6 The goal of health and care services is to help older, vulnerable or 
disabled adults who have ongoing support needs to live well and 
have a good life. A “good life” means living independently at home 
wherever possible, with opportunities to spend time with other people 
and to do things which are meaningful to that individual. 

7 Current ways of supporting adults do not consistently result in 
everyone achieving all of their goals and living well where they want 
to live. People and families are not always helped enough to look 

Page 97 Agenda Item 7



2 
 

after themselves and each other. Services can be overly paternalistic 
and lack the choice and control that services users rightly demand. 

8 Social care is often a vital part of enabling people to live independent 
lives but it is far from being the only component to enable people to 
live fulfilled lives. We must be ready to have different conversations 
which take full account people’s assets, strengths, knowledge and 
skills to build and harness the contributions of people, their personal 
networks, social capital and their local communities. This will support 
greater wellbeing, independence and improved outcomes for citizens, 
it will better employ and utilise the skills of our staff group and 
contribute to a more sustainable financial future for our organisation 
and its partners. 

Summary of the Programme to date 
 

9 In June 2017, KPMG were asked to support the Adult Social Care 
transformation programme team (Future Focus) define a new Adult 
Social Care (ASC) operating model to an appropriate and meaningful 
level of detail. The design is based on a set of established design 
principles for the programme, and CYC’s overarching aim to prevent, 
reduce and delay the need for care.  

10 The model that was outlined for implementation in York is based on 
extensive consultation and active involvement of frontline 
professionals and ASC leaders to ensure broad support and the long 
term sustainability of suggested changes. 

11 The work of the design phase has identified: 

a. Issues and challenges within the current system and current 
operating model. 

b. Outcomes required of the new operating model. 

c. An overview of a future operating model. 

d. Potential cashable savings available to the directorate based 
upon analysis and assumptions.  

e. Potential non cashable time equivalent savings based upon 
business data analysis and staff input.  

f. Potential costs to the directorate to implement changes in order 
to realise time equivalent and cashable savings.  
  

Page 98



3 
 

Issues and Challenges of the current system: 

12 Adult Social Care in York contends with the challenges of a rising 
older population; a mode of working which is set up in a way that sets 
people on a path towards high-cost council commissioned services. 
There is a lack of opportunity and capacity to assess individuals’ 
strengths and support them back to independence. The combination 
of these factors will put pressure on the budget and are forecasted to 
increase the current spending trajectory significantly over the next 
decade. 

13 The design phase has uncovered a number of issues in the current 
system, including large numbers of inappropriate referrals into the 
system, long waiting lists for people requiring Care Act Assessments 
and Financial Eligibility Assessments, large amounts of professional 
time being used for activity that was not ‘value added’ in terms of 
progressing care and support.  

A strength based pilot: 

14 The design phase also noted some exceptional work undertaken 
within the system. An example of this was piloted by The Intensive 
Support Service within ASC. This team, working in a strength-based 
way, invested in staff who met people early and face to face rather 
than dealing with their presenting needs over the phone. Since this 
strength based approach to care management conversations was 
piloted, 38% people who received a home visit from the Intensive 
Support Service, as opposed to waiting for a Care Act Assessment, 
did not go on to need a service and 100% of respondents said the 
advice and information had a positive impact. This was measured 
during the initial design stage.    

Outcomes required of the new Operating Model: 

15 Building resilience: In keeping with the council’s approach to strength 
based approaches and creating resilient communities, the new model 
seeks to build resilience through strength and outcomes based 
conversations with people at every point in the care journey. By 
bringing the skills of community social work practice and occupational 
therapy quickly to residents seeking support. The model will facilitate 
York’s citizens to utilise community and voluntary services around 
them in concert with any required council commissioned care in 
support. This will better connect people to their communities, to 
prevent unnecessary escalation of need, keeping citizens 
independent and in the community for longer and reduce overall 
demand formal council provision and those of health services. 

Page 99



4 
 

16 Collaboration and Co-production: The new operating model seeks to 
build on key relationships with trusted partners aligning to projects 
and opportunities within the community and in wider heath services. 
By coordinating support through a range of community and health 
based provision, and connecting ASC staff to what is available in 
peoples communities, this is will improve customer experience.  

17 Right Place – Right Time: The opportunity to work differently, reduce 
waiting times for people and reduce the bureaucracy associated with 
the current model allows ASC to free-up resources of skills and time 
to be directed to areas where their expertise, professionalism and 
skills can have the greatest impact on people’s wellbeing. A 
combination of a swift response, better conversations and improved 
information and advice about what is available to support people 
seeks to prevent people waiting long periods for responses which 
may not be the most beneficial for their independence or resilience.   

18 Improve CYC ASC financial and operational sustainability: The model 
seeks to build citizens’ independence and resilience to change the 
profile of ASC in York. In concert with other programmes of work the 
a new model looks to re-profile care packages towards less intensive 
services by directing care delivered in residential, hospital and 
nursing settings towards care delivered in the community wherever 
appropriate.  

Overview of proposed future Operating Model: 

19 The programme has worked with staff, partners and customer groups 
and co-designed an understanding of five core functions of a new 
model of working. These are underpinned by more fluid working and 
a much stronger focus on strengths-based activities within ASC to 
deliver the best support to York’s residents. 

a. Accessing help in the community: Making methods of support 
available before contacting the council. The model requires us 
to focus on improving the quality and accessibility to local, up 
to date information. To improve and increase use of 
community-based support such as the Local Area 
Coordinators, and increase outreach offer of information, 
advice and guidance into the community through partners and 
community services. This will minimise the need for residents 
to use the council or adult social care services as their initial 
point of contact when seeking support at an early stage. 

b. Initial contact: A citizen’s first contact with the council; Where 
contact is made, or a referral is received from partners that a 

Page 100



5 
 

social care response is likely, an Initial Contact and Response 
Function will effectively triage and respond to contacts. Staff 
will be skilled in offering a community social work approach 
working with the individual and their family to look at all 
available and appropriate opportunities in communities and 
services. There is an emphasis on the importance of face to 
face conversations to look to address root causes of issues in 
a strengths-based way rather than a service based response 
to presenting need.  

c. Initial response: Where follow up action needs to be taken by 
the as a result of the initial contact the response function will 
be made up of multi-skilled professionals including Mental 
Health, Safeguarding advisors, Occupational Therapists and 
Learning Disabilities expertise input. Consistent, standardised 
guidance and guiding questions will be used to support staff in 
having the right conversations with residents; including an 
upfront finance checkpoint to establish any financial impacts of 
statutory care. 

d. Assessment: Strengths-based assessment: Underpinning all 
aspects of model is a new approach that has a clear focus on 
a person’s strengths and outcomes. Any “assessment” forms 
will be viewed as a shared agreement between the council and 
resident, will be shared and look to include input from family 
where appropriate. Systems will be redesigned and reshaped 
to suit the needs of residents and staff. Mobile working will 
allow staff to populate forms while with residents, saving time. 
Forms and questions will be designed to capture strengths, 
preferences and challenges in a simple format. 

e. Continual Support Planning: This encompasses both support 
planning and reviews: The current support planning and 
review functions will combine to become a new continual 
support planning function. A clear distinction between ‘crisis’ 
support and longer term support planning will be maintained. A 
principle that longer term support planning should be remain 
mindful of opportunities and better outcomes afforded by local 
communities to ensure that resilience and greater 
independence underpins all parts of the social care journey. 

20 The design of the future operating model is characterised by the 
following key changes. 

a. Strength-based approaches across the customer journey. 

Page 101



6 
 

b. A multi-skilled initial response function within CYC will 
undertake strength-based conversations. This initial response 
will act as a “one-stop-shop” to provide person-centred 
information, advice and guidance, avoiding language and 
processes linked to assessment and care management.  

c. Assessments and continual support planning – a process 
which is proportionate, enables flexibility based on 
professional judgement and is reflective of strength-based 
social work practice. Initial design suggest that medium and 
long-term support planning will not take place during a time of 
crisis- with a clear demarcation between those professionals 
responsible for stabilising a short-term situation and those 
responsible for exploring options to support an individual on a 
long-term basis. 

d. A cultural shift within the ASC workforce will ensure an 
individual’s outcomes and goals are evaluated, follow-ups 
within a short time frame are prioritised and alternative options 
for support are considered at every opportunity.  

e. Joint working with partners: There will be a joint focus on 
improving outcomes at a place-based level; this will require 
improved handoffs between services whilst combining people, 
assets and knowledge into an improved and more accessible 
community offer for individuals. 

f. Focus on frontline services: There is a requirement for a 
significant reduction in the time spent by ASC practitioners on 
activities considered to be “non-value added” for the residents 
of York. This will enable frontline ASC practitioners to adopt a 
strength-based approach to practice partaking in longer, 
person-centric conversations with residents. 

g. Supporting wider place-based working in York: The Future 
Focus programme is focused on delivering better outcomes for 
adults in the realm of social care across York. It forms one part 
of the wider public sector (and third sector) system that should 
support York residents to achieve the best outcomes across all 
the domains of place. 

Summary of expected Savings: 

21 Table 1: Profile of Recommended Savings Target: 
 

Page 102



7 
 

  

Indicative FF 
Savings 
Proposals - 
FROM 
BASELINE  

 
2017/18  

 
2018/19  

 
2019/20  

 
2020/21  

 
2021/22  

 
2022/23  

 
2023/24  

 
FF1a  Initial response  

               
-    

                  
149  

                  
155  

                  
161  

                  
161  

                  
161  

                  
161  

 
FF1c  LD reviews  

               
-    

                  
169  

                  
177  

                  
185  

                  
193  

                  
202  

                  
211  

 
FF1d  

Homecare 
reviews  

               
-    

                     
30  

                     
63  

                     
66  

                     
68  

                     
71  

                     
75  

 
FF1e  

Cultural Shift  
reviews  

               
-    

                      
-    

                      
-    

                  
208  

                  
427  

                  
427  

                  
427  

 
FF2c  CHC  

               
-    

                      
-    

                      
-    

                      
-    

                      
-    

                      
-    

                      
-    

 
FF4ii  

Self Funder 
Charge  

               
-    

                     
17  

                     
31  

                     
35  

                     
35  

                     
35  

                     
35  

   TOTALS 
               
-    

                  
365  

                  
426  

                  
655  

                  
884  

                  
896  

                  
909  

 

Monitoring the impact and success of the new operating model 

22 The programme has defined a number of outcomes targets for the new 
operating model. This requires a new set of report metrics complimentary 
to and in addition to the current ASCOF and internal measurements that 
detail reduction in demand and improvement in outcomes: 

Table 2: Proposed outcomes indicators and measures.  

Theme / Area Drivers Transformational 
Change 

Process Change 

Improve population 
health outcomes (York 
citizens’ health and 
wellbeing) driven by 
resilient communities 

Through a strengths 
based approach, 
facilitate and 
encourage York’s 
citizens to utilise 
community and 
voluntary assets 
around them to:  

Prevent escalation of 
need, keeping citizens 
independent and in the 
community for longer 

Reduce demand 
overall demand formal 
council provision. 

Increase the 
proportion of 
individuals signposted 
away from traditional 
council services  whilst 
reducing the number 
of re-referrals 

Increase uptake of 
direct payments from 
6.6% for older people 
to 15% (regional 
benchmark 15.4% and 
national benchmark 
17.3%)  

  Increase the 
percentage of adults 
social care users who 
have as much social 
contact as they would 
like from 50% to 55% 

Increase proportion of 
reviews that result in 
reduced levels of 
support. 

    

Page 103



8 
 

Theme / Area Drivers Transformational 
Change 

Process Change 

Improve CYC staff and 
partners’ experiences 
of delivering support. 

Build relationships with 
trusted partners and 
where appropriate 
entrust ASC activity to 
partners. This will 
improve customer 
experience, and free-
up resource within in 
CYC to be directed to 
areas where their 
expertise can have the 
greatest impact. 

Reduce the number of 
referrals from primary 
care that are 
inappropriate from the 
current levels of 788 in 
16/17 to below 1 per 
day. 

Increase number of 
self-assessments and 
assessments 
completed by trusted 
assessors.  

Improve customer 
experience of ASC –
getting appropriate 
care in the right place 
at the right time, and 
accessing choice 

Build on citizens’ 
independence and 
resilience to change 
the profile of ASC in 
York. Re-profile care 
packages towards less 
intensive services by 
directing care 
delivered in residential, 
hospital and nursing 
settings towards care 
delivered in the 
community where 
appropriate. 
 
Reduce proportion of 
demand for high-cost, 
high-needs settings 
 
Higher proportion of 
demand met by 
community-based care 
 
Delay customers’ entry 
to residential and 
nursing care settings 
where appropriate by 
maintaining their 
independence in the 
community 

Reduce unplanned 
hospital admissions 
(adults) from nursing 
and care homes.  
 
Reduce number of 
people unnecessarily 
assessed for council 
funded adult social 
care. 
 
Increase proportion of 
adults in long term 
support having their 
care needs met by 
community based 
services  
 
Reduce the proportion 
of adults whose long 
term care needs are 
met by residential 
homes. 
 
Reduce the proportion 
of adults whose long 
term care needs are 
met by nursing homes  
 
Reduce average 
length of stay in 
residential and care for 
those over the age of 
65. 

Reduce average time 
from first contact to 
assessment, and care 
in place. 
 
Increase the 
percentage of 
reablement packages 
that cease at or within 
six weeks. 
 
Reduce number of 
complaints made due 
to ‘lack of action’  
 
Increase reablement 
cases to have no 
ongoing care and 
increase completed 
cases followed by a 
reduce care package. 
 
Reduce delayed 
transfers of care 
attributable to social 
care. 
 
Supporting more 
individuals who require 
long-term care having 
their needs met 
through support living 
where appropriate. 

Improve CYC ASC 
financial and 
operational 
sustainability 

Build resilience, work 
effectively with 
partners and re-profile 
care packages by 
providing the 
appropriate care at the 
right place and the 
right times to 

Contribute to the 
savings required for 
ASC and the wider 
council.  

 

Page 104



9 
 

Theme / Area Drivers Transformational 
Change 

Process Change 

contribute to ASC cost 
savings, without 
compromising quality. 

 

Next Steps: 

23 The programme is moving from its design phase to implementation 
and is looking to partner with an experienced external provider who 
has successfully implemented work of this time across a number of 
other authorities.  

24 The programme is selecting and sequencing the activity into a 
detailed implementation plan for delivery of change throughout 2018.  

 

Author: 

Mike Richardson 
Programme Manager 
Future Focus Transformation Programme 
Ext 4578 

 
 

 Glossary  
ASC – Adult Social Care 
ASCOF – Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 
CHC – Continuing Health Care  
CYC – City of York Council 
FF – Future Focus 
LD – Learning Disabilities 
 

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Health, Housing & Adult Social Care Policy & Scrutiny Committee 

Work Plan 2017-18 

20 June 2017 1. Attendance of Executive Member for Housing & Safer Neighbourhoods 
2. Attendance of Executive Member for Health & Adult Social Care 
3. Annual report of HWBB 
4. Six-monthly Quality Monitoring Report – residential, nursing and homecare services 
5. Update on decisions taken on smoking cessation and their impact. 
6. CCG Task Group Scoping Report 
7. Work Plan 2017/18 
8. Urgent Business – New Mental Health Hospital Update  

25 July 2017 1. End of Year Finance & Performance Report. 

Health 

2. Be Independent end of year position 
3. Report on The Retreat action plan following CQC inspection. 
4. Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults Annual Assurance report 

Housing 

5. Introduction to Safer York Partnership 
6. Report on new Community Safety Strategy. 

 
7. Work Plan 2017/18 

 
Information Reports 
 
Annual Report of Tees Esk & Wear Valleys Foundation Trust (AGM 19th July) 

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 8



13 September 2017 1. 1st  Quarter Finance & Monitoring Report 
 
Health 

2. Consultation on Mental Health Strategy for York. 

3. Update report on York Hospital’s financial situation 
 
Housing 

4. Update Report on Implications of Homelessness Reduction Act 
5. Update report on fire safety and housing 

 
6. Work Plan 2017/18 

3 October 2017 
 
CANCELLED 

Health 
 

1. Future Focus 
 
Housing 
 

2. Review of Allocations Policy & Choice-based Lettings 
3. Update Report on Housing Revenue Account Business Plan. 

 
4. Work Plan 2017/18 

 
Information reports 

 Further update report on community service provision  

 Annual Report of Chair of Teaching Hospital NHS FT  

P
age 108



 Annual Report of Chair of Yorkshire Ambulance Service (Annual meeting 26th 
September) 

 Annual Report of Chair of Vale of York CCG (Annual meeting 21st September)  

15 November 2017 Housing 

1. Update Report on Housing Revenue Account Business Plan. 
 
Health 
 

2. Healthwatch six-monthly performance update 
3. York Hospital Winter Plan Briefing Presentation 
4. Future Focus programme 

 
5. Work Plan 2017/18 

Information reports 
 

 North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service 

12 December 2017 1. 2nd Qtr Finance and Performance Monitoring Report 
 
Health 
 

2. HWBB six-monthly update report. 
3. Update Report on progress of Humber, Coast and Vale Sustainability and 

Transformation Partnership. 
4. Six-monthly Quality Monitoring Report – residential, nursing and homecare 
5. Implementation of Recommendations from Public Health Grant Spending Scrutiny 

Review 

P
age 109



 
Housing 
 

6. Review of Allocations Policy & Choice-based Lettings 
 

7. Work Plan 2017/18 

15 January 2018 Health 
 

1. Update report on The Retreat Improvement plans 
2. Be Independent six-monthly update report 
3. Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults six-monthly assurance report 
4. Update Report on Elderly Persons’ Homes. 

 
Housing 
 

5. Homeless Strategy 
6. Housing Registrations Scrutiny Review – Implementation Update 
7. Work Plan 2017/18 

19 February 2018 1. 3rd Quarter Finance & Performance Monitoring Report 
2. New Mental Health Hospital Update – full business case for new build. 
3. Work Plan 2017/18 

26 March 2018 1. Work Plan 2017/18 
2. Update Report on Actions Against Community Safety Plan Targets 

23 April 2018 1. Work Plan 2017/18 

23 May 2018 1. Healthwatch six-monthly performance update 
2. Work Plan 2017/18 

 

P
age 110



Information Reports 

 North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service 

 

 

 

On Going Issues 

CCG Recovery Plan (possible this work can be taken on by proposed Task Group) 

Better Care Fund 

Healthy Child Service (Service launch in June. Data to measure trends and KPIs) 

Report at a future date on North Yorkshire and York Suicide Prevention Group (Agreed January 2017)  

 

 

P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	2 Minutes
	4 Housing Review Account Business Plan
	Annex A - HRA Business Plan 2017-2047

	5 Healthwatch York Six Monthly Review
	6 Urgent Care Resilience Plans 2017-18
	Annex A - Winter Plan briefing presentation_OSC

	7 Future Focus Update Report
	8 Work Plan

